
 

City Hall Council Chamber 

1515 Sixth Street, Coachella, California 

(760) 398-3502      www.coachella.org 

AGENDA 

 

CITY COUNCIL 

REGULAR MEETING 

 

 

 OF THE CITY OF COACHELLA 

 

THE COUNCIL SITTING AS THE COACHELLA SANITARY DISTRICT, 

COACHELLA FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT, COACHELLA FINANCING AUTHORITY, 

COACHELLA EDUCATIONAL AND GOVERNMENTAL ACCESS CABLE CHANNEL CORPORATION, 

COACHELLA WATER AUTHORITY, AND SUCCESSOR AGENCY TO THE COACHELLA REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY 

March 11, 2020 

6:00 PM 
 

 

CALL TO ORDER: 

ROLL CALL: 

APPROVAL OF AGENDA: 

“At this time the Council/ Board/Corporation/Authority may announce any items being pulled from the Agenda 

or continued to another date or request the moving of an item on the agenda” 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE: 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES: 

1. Regular Meeting Minutes of February 26, 2020, of the City Council, Coachella Fire Protection District, 

Coachella Sanitary District, Coachella Financing Authority, Coachella Educational and Governmental 

Access Cable Corporation, Coachella Water Authority, and Successor Agency to the Coachella 

Redevelopment Agency.  

PROCLAMATIONS/PRESENTATIONS: 

None. 

WRITTEN COMMUNICATIONS: 

CONSENT CALENDAR: 

(It is recommended that Consent Items be acted upon simultaneously unless separate discussion and/or action is 

requested by a Council Member or member of the audience.) 

2. Voucher Listings — Manual Checks/Utility Billing Refunds/FY 2019-20 Expenditures as of March 11, 

2020, $629,862.96. 

Page 1

http://www.coachella.org/


Agenda CC/CSD/CFPD/CFA/CEGACCC/CWA/SA-RDA March 11, 2020 

Page 2 

 

3. Ordinance No. 1146 approving Change of Zone 18-07 to add the RC (Retail Cannabis) overlay zone to the 

existing C-G (General Commercial) zone on Building 1 located at 1639 and 1645 6th Street. Ed Sapigao, 

Applicant. (Second Reading) 

4. Resolution No. 2020-06 Initiating the Preparation of the Engineer’s Report and declaring Intention to Levy 

and Collect Assessments for Fiscal Year 2020/2021 for the City of Coachella Landscaping and Lighting 

Maintenance District Number 1 through 38. 

5. Approval of the Third Amendment and Restatement of the Coachella Valley Association of Governments 

(CVAG) Joint Powers Agreement, which establishes the Torres Martinez Band of Cahuilla Indians as 

Formal Members CVAG 

6. Investment Report – January 2020 

7. Authorize 1) surplus of the City’s 1990 Dump Truck International unit and 2) purchase of a new 2021 Dump 

Truck International unit to replace the 1990 unit, in the amount of $99,675.78.   

8. Authorize the Purchase of Sedaru Asset & Operational Management Software Licensing for Calendar Year 

2020 at a cost of $31,080.00. 

9. Shady Lane Park Art Mural Installation Project 

10. Authorize the Purchase of Thirty (30) James Jones J-4060 Fire Hydrants at a Cost of $68,847.90. 

NEW BUSINESS CALENDAR (LEGISLATIVE AND ADMINISTRATIVE): 

None. 

PUBLIC HEARING CALENDAR (QUASI-JUDICIAL): 

11. Resolution No. 2020-17 approving Tentative Parcel Map No. 37833 to allow the subdivision of 5.76 acres 

of developed land into two lots including one 2.79-acres lot and one 2.97-acre lot, respectively to allow a 

two-phase multifamily residential development project at 84-900 Bagdad Avenue.  Community Housing 

Opportunities Corporation, Applicant. 

PUBLIC COMMENTS (NON-AGENDA ITEMS): 

The public may address the City Council/Board/Corporation/ Authority on any item of interest to the public that 

is not on the agenda but is in the subject matter jurisdiction thereof. Please limit your comments to three (3) 

minutes. 

REPORTS AND REQUESTS: 

Council Comments/Report of Miscellaneous Committees. 

City Manager’s Comments. 

Page 2



Agenda CC/CSD/CFPD/CFA/CEGACCC/CWA/SA-RDA March 11, 2020 

Page 3 

 

ADJOURNMENT: 

 

 
 

Complete Agenda Packets are available for public inspection at the  

City Clerk’s Office at 53-462 Enterprise Way, Coachella, California, and on the  

City’s website www.coachella.org. 

 

 

THIS MEETING IS ACCESSIBLE TO PERSONS WITH DISABILITIES 

Page 3

http://www.coachella.org/


 

City Hall Council Chamber 

1515 Sixth Street, Coachella, California 

(760) 398-3502      www.coachella.org 

MINUTES 

 

CITY COUNCIL CLOSED SESSION AND   

REGULAR MEETING 

 

 

 OF THE CITY OF COACHELLA 

 

THE COUNCIL SITTING AS THE COACHELLA SANITARY DISTRICT, 

COACHELLA FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT, COACHELLA FINANCING AUTHORITY, 

COACHELLA EDUCATIONAL AND GOVERNMENTAL ACCESS CABLE CHANNEL CORPORATION, 

COACHELLA WATER AUTHORITY, AND SUCCESSOR AGENCY TO THE COACHELLA REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY 

February 26, 2020 

5:00 PM Closed Session 

6:00 PM Regular Meeting 
 

 

CALL TO ORDER: - 5:00 P.M. 

 

The Regular Meeting of the City Council of the City of Coachella was called to order at 5:07 p.m. in the Council 

Chamber at City Hall by Mayor Pro Tem Martinez. 

 

ROLL CALL: 

 

Present:  Councilmember Bautista, Councilmember Gonzalez, Councilmember Beaman Jacinto 

(Arrived at 5:32 p.m.), Mayor Pro Tem Martinez.  

 

Absent:   Mayor Hernandez. 

 

(It was announced that Mayor Hernandez notified staff that he would be absent, and Councilmember Beaman 

Jacinto would be arriving late.) 

 

APPROVAL OF AGENDA: 

 

To add to the agenda one item under presentations as 7b, and to add to the agenda by four-fifths vote one item 

under Closed Session as Item 1b. City Attorney Campos noted the item was brought to our attention today 

regarding one of the items on this agenda. 

 

Motion:   To add to the agenda by 4/5 vote Item 1b.  

Made by:   Councilmember Bautista 

Seconded by:   Councilmember Gonzalez 

Approved:   3-0, by a unanimous voice vote 

 
There were no further modifications to the agenda.  

 

Motion:   To approve agenda as modified.  

Made by:   Councilmember Bautista 

Seconded by:   Councilmember Gonzalez  

Approved:   3-0, a unanimous voice vote 

Page 4

Item 1.

http://www.coachella.org/


Minutes CC/CSD/CFPD/CFA/CEGACCC/CWA/SA-RDA February 26, 2020 

Page 2 

 

PUBLIC COMMENTS (CLOSED SESSION ITEMS): 

 

None. 

 

ADJOURN TO CLOSED SESSION: 

 

The City Council convened into Closed Session at 5:09 p.m. to discuss the following item: 

 

   1a.  CONFERENCE WITH  LEGAL COUNSEL - EXISTING LITIGATION Pursuant to Government Code  

Section  54956.9(d)(1)  

City of Coachella v. Gunther 

Superior Ct. of California, County of Riverside, Palm Springs Division 

Case No. PSC1805137 

 

2b  CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL – ANTICIPATED LITIGATION  

Significant Exposure to Litigation, Pursuant to Government Code Section 54956.9(d)(2)/(e)(1) 

One (1) potential case 

 

(Councilmember Beaman Jacinto arrived at 5:32 p.m. during Closed Session.) 

 

RECONVENE REGULAR MEETING: - 6:00 P.M. 

 

The City Council reconvened into open session at 6:00 p.m.  

 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE: 

 

Consultant Ron Goldman led the Pledge of Allegiance. 

 

CLOSED SESSION ANNOUNCEMENTS: 

 

City Attorney Campos stated that direction was given in Closed Session, but no reportable action was taken. 

 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES: 

 

2. Special Meeting Minutes of February 10, 2020, of the City Council, Coachella Fire Protection District, 

Coachella Sanitary District, Coachella Financing Authority, Coachella Educational and Governmental 

Access Cable Corporation, Coachella Water Authority, and Successor Agency to the Coachella 

Redevelopment Agency.  

 

Motion:   To approve the minutes as presented. 

 

Made by:  Councilmember Beaman Jacinto 

Seconded by:  Councilmember Gonzalez 

Approved:  4-0, by a unanimous voice vote 

 

 

Page 5

Item 1.



Minutes CC/CSD/CFPD/CFA/CEGACCC/CWA/SA-RDA February 26, 2020 

Page 3 

 

3. Regular Meeting Minutes of February 12, 2020, of the City Council, Coachella Fire Protection District, 

Coachella Sanitary District, Coachella Financing Authority, Coachella Educational and Governmental 

Access Cable Corporation, Coachella Water Authority, and Successor Agency to the Coachella 

Redevelopment Agency.  

 

Motion:   To approve the minutes as presented. 

 

Made by:  Councilmember Bautista 

Seconded by:  Councilmember Gonzalez 

Approved:  4-0, by a unanimous voice vote 

 

PROCLAMATIONS/PRESENTATIONS: 

 

4. Recognition of Greater Coachella Valley Chamber of Commerce (GCVCC) President and CEO Joshua 

Bonner having been named the Executive of the Year for 2019 by the Western Association of Chamber 

Executives (WACE) 

 

5. Census 2020: City of Coachella Complete Count Committee Outreach Strategy 

 

6. Grapefruit Boulevard Urban Greening Project Update Presentation 

 

7a. Mural Installation - Shady Lane Park 

 

7b. 2020 Legislative Update by Ollin Strategies 

 

WRITTEN COMMUNICATIONS: 

 

City Clerk Zepeda noted communication was received from Rutan & Tucker and DiMare/Shadow View T.I.C. 

(collectively) pertaining to Item 21 that was distributed to the Council earlier in the day.  

 

CONSENT CALENDAR: 

 

8. Voucher Listings — Manual Checks/FY 2019-20 Expenditures as of February 26, 2020, $1,980,296.20. 

 

9. Ordinance No. 1155 approving the La Entrada Development Agreement (First Amendment) to allow 

additional time to commence construction activities and amend the provisions for affordable housing for 

the La Entrada Project. PSAV, LLC and LLSE Holdings LLC, Co-Applicants. (Second Reading)  

 

10. Resolution No. 2020-15 granting the first five-year term extension to the La Entrada Development 

Agreement, pursuant to Section 8.3 of the Agreement which allows the owner to request up to three five-

year term extensions, provided the owners are not in default of the Agreement.   

 

11. Approve operation of a Beer Garden for the Coachella Mariachi Festival on Saturday, March 28, 2020, 

from 5:00 p.m. – 9:00 p.m. at Veterans’ Memorial Park. 

 

Page 6

Item 1.



Minutes CC/CSD/CFPD/CFA/CEGACCC/CWA/SA-RDA February 26, 2020 

Page 4 

 

12. Authorization for the City Manager to execute a Letter Agreement to Zambelli Fireworks Manufacturing 

Co. for special event pyrotechnic programming, for the City’s 2020 Fourth of July Event, in the amount of 

$34,000. 

 

13. Approval of a Community Based Grant to El Sol Neighborhood Educational Center in the Amount of 

$1,000 to Support a Cultural and Educational Workshop Offered by Culturas Music-Arts 

 

14. Approval of a Community Based Grant to the Coachella Valley Softball Team at Coachella Valley High 

School in the Amount of $1,000.00 to Help Offset Travel Expenses Associated with a Softball Competition 

in Hawaii 

 

15. Investment Report — October, November, and December 2019 

 

16. Approval to Execute First Amendment to the Purchase Option Agreement with R.B. Johnson Investments, 

LLC., for the Affordable Housing and Sustainable Communities (AHSC) Program 

 

Motion:  To approve per staff recommendation, Consent Calendar Items 8 through 16. 

 

Made by:   Councilmember Bautista 

Seconded by:   Councilmember Beaman Jacinto 

Approved:    4-0, by a unanimous roll call vote: 

 

AYES: Councilmember Bautista, Councilmember Gonzalez, Councilmember Beaman 

Jacinto and Mayor Pro Tem Martinez  

NOES:   None.  

ABSTAIN:    None. 

ABSENT:    Mayor Hernandez. 

 

NEW BUSINESS CALENDAR (LEGISLATIVE AND ADMINISTRATIVE): 

 

17. Resolution No. 2020-16 reducing the Adult Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) Park User Fees to 

mirror Youth MOU Park User Fees and extending Reduced Park Use Fee Schedule through June 30, 2021. 

 

Motion:  To approve per staff recommendation 

 

Made by:  Mayor Pro Tem Martinez 

Seconded by:   Councilmember Beaman Jacinto 

Approved:   4-0, by a unanimous roll call vote: 

 

AYES: Councilmember Bautista, Councilmember Gonzalez, Councilmember Beaman 

Jacinto and Mayor Pro Tem Martinez  

NOES:   None.  

ABSTAIN:   None. 

ABSENT:   Mayor Hernandez. 

  

Page 7

Item 1.



Minutes CC/CSD/CFPD/CFA/CEGACCC/CWA/SA-RDA February 26, 2020 

Page 5 

 

18. Approval for the City to host/sponsor the City of Coachella’s SoCal Cannabis Summit in the Fall of 2020 

with funding not to exceed $30,000. 

 

Motion:  To approve per staff recommendation 

 

Made by:  Councilmember Bautista 

Seconded by:   Councilmember Beaman Jacinto 

Approved:   4-0, by a unanimous roll call vote: 

 

AYES: Councilmember Bautista, Councilmember Gonzalez, Councilmember Beaman 

Jacinto and Mayor Pro Tem Martinez  

NOES:   None.  

ABSTAIN:   None. 

ABSENT:   Mayor Hernandez. 

 

19. Date Harvest Festival 2020 Sponsorship: 

 

Motion:  To approve the special event permit with a modified 2020 in-kind as described:  

 The full in-kind;  

 Plus the cost of the Ferris wheel 

Approximate value $20,000.00 

 

Made by:  Councilmember Beaman Jacinto 

Seconded by:   Councilmember Bautista 

Approved:   4-0, by a unanimous roll call vote: 

 

AYES: Councilmember Bautista, Councilmember Gonzalez, Councilmember Beaman 

Jacinto and Mayor Pro Tem Martinez  

NOES:   None.  

ABSTAIN:   None. 

ABSENT:   Mayor Hernandez. 

 

Public Comments were moved up to this portion of the meeting at 8:00 p.m.: 
 

a. Humberto Ruiz 

b. Joshua Bonner 

 

PUBLIC HEARING CALENDAR (QUASI-JUDICIAL): 

 

20. Kismet Coachella Dispensary 

 

a) Ordinance No. 1146 approving Change of Zone No. 18-07 that proposes to add the RC (Retail Cannabis) 

overlay zone to the existing C-G (General Commercial) zone on Building 1 located at 1639 and 1645 

6th Street. (First Reading) 

 

(Continued) 

 

Page 8

Item 1.



Minutes CC/CSD/CFPD/CFA/CEGACCC/CWA/SA-RDA February 26, 2020 

Page 6 

 

(Item 20, Ordinance No. 1146 and Resolution No. 2020-09 continued from previous page. The two items 

were voted upon separately, while the public hearing on the two items remained opened during the votes.) 

 

Mayor Pro Tem Martinez opened the Public Hearing for Item 20 at 8:19 p.m. 

 

Public Comment: Cheryl Thomas 

 

Motion:  To introduce by title only and pass to second reading. 

 

Made by:  Councilmember Bautista 

Seconded by:   Councilmember Beaman Jacinto 

Approved:   4-0, by a unanimous roll call vote: 

 

AYES: Councilmember Bautista, Councilmember Gonzalez, Councilmember Beaman 

Jacinto and Mayor Pro Tem Martinez  

NOES:   None.  

ABSTAIN:   None. 

ABSENT:   Mayor Hernandez. 

 

b) Resolution No. 2020-09 approving Conditional Use Permit No. 305 to convert an existing vacant 

commercial tenant space into a 3,050 square foot cannabis dispensary with 750 square feet for check-

in and waiting area, 1800 square feet of retail display area and 500 square feet of rear storage, inventory 

control and packaging to be located in Building 1 located at 1639 and 1645 6th Street; and a 4,500 square 

foot coffee shop, art display and office/event space to be located in Building 2 located at 1657 and 1669 

6th Street. 

 

Motion:  To approve per staff recommendation 

 

Made by:  Councilmember Beaman Jacinto  

Seconded by:   Councilmember Bautista 

Approved:   4-0, by a unanimous roll call vote: 

 

AYES: Councilmember Bautista, Councilmember Gonzalez, Councilmember Beaman 

Jacinto and Mayor Pro Tem Martinez  

NOES:   None.  

ABSTAIN:   None. 

ABSENT:   Mayor Hernandez. 

 

Mayor Pro Tem Martinez closed the Public Hearing for Item 20 at 8:30 p.m. 

 

21. Vista Del Agua Specific Plan and EIR 

 

On the following item, the department director received after the start of the meeting written communication 

from Mitchell M. Tsai, Attorney at Law, on behalf of Southwest Regional Council Carpenters and forwarded 

it to the City Attorney for his consideration. As noted during Written Communication (Page 3), the City 

Council received a letter from Rutan & Tucker and DiMare/Shadow View T.I.C. (collectively). 

  

Page 9

Item 1.



Minutes CC/CSD/CFPD/CFA/CEGACCC/CWA/SA-RDA February 26, 2020 

Page 7 

 

Vista Del Agua Specific Plan and EIR (Continued from previous page.) 

 

a) Resolution No. WA-2020-03 a Resolution of the Board of Directors of the Coachella Water Authority 

approving the Water Supply Assessment dated November 2017 for the Vista Del Agua Project. 

 

b) Resolution No. 2020-02, a Resolution of the City Council of the City of Coachella certifying 

Environmental Impact Report (SCH # 2015031003) prepared for the Vista Del Agua Specific Plan; the 

adoption of environmental findings and a mitigation monitoring and reporting program pursuant to the 

California Environmental Quality Act and approving the Vista Del Agua Specific Plan Project.  

 

c) Resolution No. 2020-03 a Resolution of the City Council of the City of Coachella approving General 

Plan Amendment 14-01 on approximately 275 acres (Vista Del Agua Specific Plan) generally located 

on the south side of Interstate 10 and Vista Del Sur, north of Avenue 48; east of Tyler Street and west 

of Polk Street.  General Plan Amendment 14-01 proposes to amend the General Plan from General 

Neighborhood, Urban Neighborhood, Suburban Neighborhood, Suburban Retail and Neighborhood 

Center to Specific Plan.  

 

d) Ordinance No. 1156 an Ordinance of the of the City of Coachella approving Change of Zone 14-01 that 

changes the existing General Commercial (C-G), Residential Single Family (R-S), Manufacturing –

Service (M-S) zoning to a Specific Plan zone. (First Reading)  

 

e) Ordinance No. 1157, an Ordinance of the City of Coachella approving the Vista Del Agua Specific Plan 

14-01 that proposes residential, commercial, open space and park land uses along with development 

standards and design guidelines for the development of approximately 275 acres. (First Reading) 

 

f) Resolution No. 2020-04, a Resolution of the City Council of the City of Coachella approving Tentative 

Parcel Map 36872 to subdivide 275 acres into six numbered lots and one lettered lot for financing and 

conveyance purposes only. 

 

Mayor Pro Tem Martinez opened the Public Hearing for Item 21 at 8:53 p.m. 

 

Public Comment: Rita Kashkari 

    Gary Scarborough 

 

Motion:  To continue item to April 8, 2020. 

 

Made by:  Councilmember Bautista  

Seconded by:   Councilmember Beaman Jacinto 

Approved:   4-0, by a unanimous roll call vote: 

 

AYES: Councilmember Bautista, Councilmember Gonzalez, Councilmember Beaman 

Jacinto and Mayor Pro Tem Martinez  

NOES:   None.  

ABSTAIN:   None. 

ABSENT:   Mayor Hernandez. 

 

  

Page 10

Item 1.



Minutes CC/CSD/CFPD/CFA/CEGACCC/CWA/SA-RDA February 26, 2020 

Page 8 

 

PUBLIC COMMENTS (NON-AGENDA ITEMS): 

 

At 8:00 p.m., per Resolution No. 2019-34, Public Comments were moved up (see Page 5). There were no further 

comments at this time. 

 

REPORTS AND REQUESTS: 

 

Council Comments/Report of Miscellaneous Committees. 

 

City Manager’s Comments. 

 

ADJOURNMENT: 

 

There being no further business to come before the City Council and the Agencies, Mayor Pro Tem Martinez 

adjourned the meeting at 9:07 p.m. 

 

Respectfully submitted, 

 

___________________________ 

Angela M. Zepeda 

City Clerk 

Page 11

Item 1.



Page 12

Item 2.



Page 13

Item 2.



Page 14

Item 2.



Page 15

Item 2.



Page 16

Item 2.



Page 17

Item 2.



Page 18

Item 2.



Page 19

Item 2.



Page 20

Item 2.



Page 21

Item 2.



Page 22

Item 2.



Page 23

Item 2.



Page 24

Item 2.



Page 25

Item 2.



Page 26

Item 2.



Page 27

Item 2.



Page 28

Item 2.



Page 29

Item 2.



 

STAFF REPORT 

3/11/2020 

TO: Honorable Mayor and City Council Members 

FROM: Luis Lopez, Development Services Director  

SUBJECT: Ordinance No. 1146 approving Change of Zone 18-07 to add the RC (Retail 

Cannabis) overlay zone to the existing C-G (General Commercial) zone on 

Building 1 located at 1639 and 1645 6th Street. Ed Sapigao, Applicant. (Second 

Reading) 
 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 

 

Staff recommends that the City Council approve Ordinance No. 1146 to change the zoning from 

C-G (General Commercial) zone to CG-RC (General Commercial – Retail Cannabis Overlay) zone 

on a .14 acre commercial parcel located at 1639 – 1645 6th Street.  

 

BACKGROUND: 

 

On February 26, 2020, the City Council conducted a public hearing and approved first reading of 

Ordinance No. 1146 and approved Conditional Use Permit No. 305 to allow a 3,050 square foot 

cannabis dispensary on the site of a vacant multi-tenant commercial property at the above address. 

 

DISCUSSION: 

 

Attached for City Council’s approval is the second reading version of Ordinance No. 1146 

amending the City’s Official Zoning Map to allow the use of the RC (Retail Cannabis) Overlay 

zone for the Kismet Coachella Retail Dispensary project.  The development will include a 

complete renovation of the existing buildings and secondary businesses including office suites and 

a coffee shop/eatery on the adjoining buildings. The Planning Commission recommended approval 

of this project on November 6, 2019. 

 

Building Façade Discussion:  

 

At the February 26, 2020 public hearing the City Council expressed concern over the 

“modernistic” exterior architectural elevations that were presented by the applicant.  The 

architectural images below show the architectural elevations as they were approved in 2012 by the 

Planning Commission, modeled after the “Coachella Kidney Dialysis” building on 6th Street 

(designed by same architect), and a comparison with the latest exhibits. 

 

Page 30

Item 3.



 

 

 

Exhibits for Architectural Review No. 12-08 

 

 

 

 

Exhibits for Conditional Use Permit No. 305 

 

 

Page 31

Item 3.



As shown above, the 2012 building facades proposed smooth stucco plaster finish with strong 

accent colors, accented window trims, two “quatrefoil” plant-on details on the parapet roof 

structure, and Spanish Tile awnings and the “stepped parapet wall” over the front entries on the 

old barber shop building and the office suites building.  The project proposed to remove and 

enclose the “cove” storefront window display/ entry at the old Menswear building creating new 

entry doors that were flush with the façade walls, and an arched window.  A decorative wrought 

iron gate was proposed on the original project (not shown).  

 

The facades for CUP 305 show smooth plaster with a soft white finish on all the buildings, no 

window trims and no Spanish Tile awnings.  One arched metal awning is shown at the old barber 

shop building and no quatrefoil details, and only one added “stepped parapet wall” is proposed 

over the office suites building.  The old Menswear building shows a restoration/preservation of 

the “cove storefront” window displays, in its original configuration.  An arched metal trellis cover 

with “Ivy It” espaliers is shown over the driveway.  Similarly, a wrought iron gate is shown.  

 

The City Council directed staff to work with the architect to blend the proposed architectural 

features to include the “Pueblo Viejo” design guidelines including traditional window awning 

treatments, base trims with mosaic tile and accent colors to complement the Spanish Colonial 

architecture that is preferred for the downtown.  Staff will continue to work with the designers to 

preserve the historic character of the buildings, while bringing the building facades closer into 

compliance with current design guidelines.  

 

ALTERNATIVES: 

 

1. Adopt Ordinance No 1146 

2. Continue this item and provide staff direction.  

3. Take no action.  

 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

 

There are no fiscal impacts associated with approval of this change of zone action in that it merely 

provides the owner with the ability to redevelop the commercial center with a retail cannabis 

dispensary business.  

 

RECOMMENDED ALTERNATIVE(S): 
 

Staff recommends Alternative #1 as shown above.  

 

 
Attachment:  Ordinance No. 1146 (2nd Reading)  

 

 

 

 

Page 32

Item 3.



ORDINANCE NO. 1146 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

COACHELLA APPROVING CHANGE OF ZONE 18-07 TO ADD THE 

RETAIL CANNABIS OVERLAY ZONE (RC) TO THE EXISTING 

GENERAL COMMERCIAL ZONE (C-G) ON PROPERTY LOCATED AT 

1639 AND 1645 SIXTH STREET; ED SAPIGAO, APPLICANT. 

 

WHEREAS, Ed Sapigao (on behalf of Kismet Organic Cultivation) filed an application 

for Change of Zone 18-07 on a 6,250 square foot parcel of property located at 1639 and 1645 Sixth 

Street, and attendant applications Conditional Use Permit 305, Assessor’s Parcel No. 778-061-009 

(“Project”); and, 

 

WHEREAS, the Planning Commission conducted a duly noticed public hearing on 

Change of Zone 18-07 and CUP 305 on November 6, 2019 at the Coachella Permit Center, 53-990 

Enterprise Way, Coachella, California and recommended that the City Council approve Change of 

Zone 18-07 and CUP 305; and, 

 

WHEREAS, the Applicant and members of the public were present and were afforded an 

opportunity to testify regarding the Project, at the Planning Commission meeting; and, 

 

WHEREAS, the Project is permitted pursuant to Chapter 17.47 of the Coachella Municipal 

Code, and the attendant applications for a Conditional Use Permit to allow the Project; and, 

 

WHEREAS, the proposed use is necessary or desirable for the development of the 

community, is consistent with the objectives of the City’s General Plan, and is not detrimental to 

the existing uses or the uses specifically permitted in the zone in which the proposed use is to be 

located; and, 

 

WHEREAS, the City Council conducted a duly noticed public hearing on Change of Zone 

18-07 and CUP 305 on February 26, 2020 at the Coachella City Hall, 1515 6th Street, Coachella, 

California and allowed public testimony; and, 

 

WHEREAS, the proposed site is adequate in size and shape to accommodate the proposed 

development; and, 

 

WHEREAS, the site for proposed use relates properly to streets which are designed to 

carry the type and quantity of traffic to be generated by the proposed use; and, 

 

WHEREAS, the Project is exempt from the provisions of the California Environmental 

Quality Act, as amended; and, 

 

WHEREAS, the conditions as stipulated by the City are necessary to protect the public 

health, safety and welfare of the community. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF COACHELLA 

CALIFORNIA, DOES HEREBY ORDANIN AS FOLLOWS: 

Page 33

Item 3.



 Ordinance No. 1146 

 

 

Section 1. That the City of Coachella Official Zoning Map be amended as shown on the 

attached Change of Zone 18-07 map marked “Exhibit A” from C-G (General Commercial) to CG-

RC (General Commercial - Retail Cannabis Overlay) zone on property located at 1639 and 1645 

Sixth Street, with the findings listed below: 

 

Findings for Change of Zone 18-07: 

 
1. The Project is consistent with the goals, objectives, policies, and implementation 

measures of the Coachella General Plan 2035. The site has a Downtown Center land use 

designation that allows for the proposed development. The proposed change of zone is in keeping 

with the policies of the Downtown Center land use classification and the Project is internally 

consistent with other General Plan policies for this type of development.  
 

2. The Project is in compliance with the applicable land use regulations and 

development standards of the City’s Zoning Code. The site plan proposes a cannabis retail 

business. The Project complies with applicable C-G (General Commercial) and Section 17.47.020 

property development standards as proposed. 
 

3. Every use, development of land and application of architectural guidelines and 

development standards shall be considered on the basis of the suitability of the site for a particular 

use or development intended, and the total development, including the prescribed development 

standards, shall be so arranged as to avoid traffic congestion, ensure the protection of public health, 

safety and general welfare, prevent adverse effects on neighboring property and shall be in accord 

with all elements of the general plan. The proposed change of zone is compatible with existing 

surrounding land uses that include commercial land uses.  
 

4. The Project will be compatible with neighboring properties with respect to land 

development patterns and application of architectural treatments. The plans submitted for this 

Project propose a cannabis business that is permitted in the C-G (General Commercial) zone 

pursuant to an approved Conditional Use Permit. Surrounding properties to the project site include 

commercial land uses. As such, the Project will be in keeping with the scale, massing, and aesthetic 

appeal of the existing area and future development.  
 

5. The Project is exempt from the California Environmental Quality Act pursuant to 

CEQA Guidelines Section 15303 (C) that exempts the conversion of existing small structures from 

one use to another where only minor modifications are made to the exterior of the structure. 

 

Section 2. SEVERABILITY. The City Council declares that, should any provision, 

section, paragraph, sentence or word of this ordinance be rendered or declared invalid by any final 

court action in a court of competent jurisdiction or by reason of any preemptive legislation, the 

remaining provisions, sections, paragraphs, sentences or words of this ordinance as hereby adopted 

shall remain in full force and effect. 

 

Section 3. EFFECTIVE DATE. This ordinance shall take effect thirty (30) days after its 

second reading by the City Council. 

 

Page 34

Item 3.



 Ordinance No. 1146 

 

Section 4. CERTIFICATION. The City Clerk shall certify to the adoption of this Ordinance and 

shall cause it to be published and circulated in the City of Coachella. 

 

PASSED, APPROVED and ADOPTED this 11th day of March 2020. 

 

 

___________________________________ 

Steven A. Hernandez  

Mayor 

 

 

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

___________________________________ 

Angela M. Zepeda 

City Clerk 

 

 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

 

 

______________________ 

Carlos Campos 

City Attorney 

  

Page 35

Item 3.



 Ordinance No. 1146 

 

STATE OF CALIFORNIA 

COUNTY OF RIVERSIDE 

CITY OF COACHELLA 

) 

) ss. 

) 

 

 

 I HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing Ordinance No. 1146 was duly and regularly 

introduced at a meeting of the City Council on the 26th day of February 2020, and that thereafter 

the said ordinance was duly passed and adopted at a regular meeting of the City Council on the 

11th day of March 2020. 

 

AYES:   

 

NOES:   

 

ABSENT:   

 

ABSTAIN:   

 

 

 

___________________________________ 

Andrea J. Carranza, MMC  

Deputy City Clerk 

 

 

Page 36

Item 3.



 

Page 37

Item 3.



 

STAFF REPORT 

3/11/2020 

TO: Honorable Mayor and City Council Members 

FROM: Gabor Pakozdi P.E., City Engineer 

SUBJECT: Resolution No. 2020-06 Initiating the Preparation of the Engineer’s Report and 

declaring Intention to Levy and Collect Assessments for Fiscal Year 2020/2021 

for the City of Coachella Landscaping and Lighting Maintenance District 

Number 1 through 38. 
 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 

 

Approve the Resolution No. 2020-06 Initiating the Preparation of the Engineer’s Report and 

declaring Intention to Levy and Collect Assessments for Fiscal Year 2020/2021 for the City of 

Coachella Landscaping and Lighting Maintenance District Number 1 through 38. 

 

BACKGROUND: 

 

The Resolution Initiating Preparation of an Engineer’s Report and Declaring Intention to Levy 

and Collect Assessments are required on an annual basis per Section 22624 of the Streets and 

Highway Code. It is the first step to assess the Annual Levy for the Landscape Districts 

Maintenance charges for Fiscal Year 2020/2021. 

The Engineer’s Report for the proposed Assessment Districts will be submitted to the City 

Council for approval tentatively on April 22, 2020 and a public hearing will be tentatively 

scheduled on June 10, 2020 prior to confirmation of the proposed assessments. 

 

 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

 

Approval of the assessments would have no adverse impact to the General Fund. The proposed 

assessments are essential to pay for the required maintenance and improvements of common 

areas within each District. The revenues and expenditures are accounted for within separate 160 

fund accounts within each District. 

Page 38

Item 4.



RESOLUTION NO. 2020-06 

 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF COACHELLA, 

CALIFORNIA, INITIATING THE PREPARATION OF THE ENGINEER’S REPORT 

AND DECLARING INTENTION TO LEVY AND COLLECT ASSESSMENTS FOR 

FISCAL YEAR 2020-2021 IN THE CITY OF COACHELLA LANDSCAPING AND 

LIGHTING MAINTENANCE DISTRICT NO. 1 THROUGH 38 

 

 WHEREAS, the City Council and the City of Coachella, California (“City Council”) has 

previously determined that the public interest, convenience, and necessity, require the 

installation, construction, and maintenance, servicing and operation of public lighting and 

landscaping and appurtenant facilities as set forth in Section 22525 of the Streets and Highways 

Code, State of California, within the incorporated boundaries of the City of Coachella; and  

 

 WHEREAS, this City Council wishes to levy and collect annual special assessments 

within those assessment districts presently designated as “City of Coachella Landscaping and 

Lighting Maintenance District No. 1 through 38” pursuant to the Landscaping and Lighting Act 

of 1972 (Streets and Highways Code Section 22500 et. seq.); and  

 

 WHEREAS, Section 22622 of the Streets and Highways Code of the State of California 

requires that an Engineer’s Report be prepared and filed annually, outlining the special 

assessments to be levied against the properties within the District; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the public interest and convenience require the installation, construction, 

maintenance, servicing and operation of lighting and landscaping and appurtenant facilities 

within the City of Coachella Landscaping and Lighting Maintenance District No. 1 through 38; 

and 

 

 THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF COACHELLA, CALIFORNIA, DOES 

HEREBY RESOLVE AS FOLLOWS: 

 

 Section 1.  That the City Engineer is hereby directed to prepare and file such report 

with the City Clerk for Fiscal Year 2020/2021.  

 

 Section 2. That this City Council hereby declares its intention to levy and collect 

special assessments within the boundaries of the City of Coachella Landscaping and Lighting 

Maintenance District No. 1 through 38 (the “Districts”) for Fiscal Year 2020/2021 pursuant to 

the Landscape and Lighting Act of 1972 to pay the costs of the improvements and maintenance 

described in Sections 3 and 4, below, that are within budget.  The proposed assessments will not 

increase above the maximum levy allowed by Proposition 218.   

 

 Section 3. That the existing improvements for each of the Districts may be generally 

described as follows: 

 

(a) The installation or planting of landscaping within roadway right-of-way, public utility 

easements, parks, parkways, and medians.  

Page 39

Item 4.



 

 

(b) The installation of construction of statuary, fountains, and other ornamental structures 

and facilities. 

 

(c) The installation or construction of public lighting facilities, including, but not limited 

to, traffic signals. 

 

(d) The installation or construction of any facilities which are appurtenant to any of the 

forgoing, or which are necessary or convenient for the maintenance or servicing 

thereof, including, but not limited to, grading, clearing, removal of debris, the 

installation or construction of curbs, gutters, walls, sidewalks, or paving, or water, 

irrigation, drainage, or electrical facilities. 

 

(e) The installation of park or recreational improvement, including but not limited to the 

following: 

a. Land preparation, such as grading, leveling, cutting and filling, sod, 

landscaping, irrigation systems, sidewalks, and drainage.  

b. Lights, playground equipment, play courts, and public restrooms. 

 

(f) The maintenance or servicing or both, of any of the foregoing.  

 

(g) The acquisition of land for park, recreational or open space purposes. 

 

(h) The acquisition of any existing improvement otherwise authorized pursuant to this 

section.  

 

Section 4. That the maintenance and servicing proposed to be performed consists of 

the furnishing of services and materials for the ordinary and usual maintenance, operation, and 

servicing of the foregoing improvements, that are within budget including: 

 

(a) Repair, removal, or replacement of all or any part of any improvements.  

 

(b) Providing for the life, growth, health and beauty of the landscaping, including 

cultivation, irrigation, trimming, spraying, fertilizing or treating for disease or injury. 

(c) The removal of trimming, rubbish, debris, and others solid waste.   

 

(d) The cleaning, sandblasting, and painting of walls and other improvements to remove 

or cover graffiti. 

 

(e) Deterring vandalism by means of security    

 

Section 5.  The assessments shall be collected at the same time and in the same 

manner as taxes for the County of Riverside are collected. 

 

 Section 6.  That this City Council does hereby designate City Engineer to administer 

the contracts for the proposed assessment districts. 

Page 40

Item 4.



 

 

 Section 7.  The general location of the Districts may be described as follows:  

 

District Number Tract Numbers 

District No. 1 14664-1 

14664-2  

14664 

17892 

District No. 2 14472 

15976 

District No. 3 14675 

18317 

28074 

District No. 4 18632-1 

18632-2 

18632 

District No. 5 Dissolved 

District No. 6 23911-1 

23911-2 

23911 

District No. 7 26467-1 

26467-2 

26467-3 

26467 

26639-1 

26639 

District No. 8 24299-1 

24299 

District No. 9 23408-1 

23408-2 

23408 

District No. 10 26592 

District No. 11 22110-1 

22110-2 

District No. 12 28374-1 

28374-2 

28374-3 

28375 

District No. 13 28443-1 

28443-2 

28443 

District No. 14 29071-1 

29071-2 

29071-3 

29071-4 

29071 

Page 41

Item 4.



 

District No. 15 30020 

District No. 16 30582 

30684-1 

30684-2 

30684-3 

30684 

District No. 17 30498-1 

District No. 18 30728 

District No. 19 30354-1 

30354 

District No. 20 30621-1 

30621 

District No. 21 22110 

District No. 22 30889 

District No. 23 30871 

District No. 24 30910-1 

30910-2 

30910 

District No. 25 31376 

District No. 26 Dissolved 

District No. 27 30831 

District No. 28 30830 

District No. 29 31664-1 

31664-2 

31664-3 

31664 

District No. 30 31508 

District No. 31 31533-1 

31533-2 

31533 

District No. 32 31551-1 

31551 

District No. 33 32264 

District No. 34 31158 

District No. 35 30978 

District No. 36 31698 

District No. 37 31550 

District No. 38 31714 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 42

Item 4.



 

 PASSED, APPROVED AND ADOPTED this 11th day of March 2020, by the following 

roll call vote: 

 

AYES: 

 

 

NOES: 

 

ABSENT: 

 

ABSTAIN: 

 

     

                               __________________________ 

        Steven Hernandez, Mayor 

        City of Coachella 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

____________________________ 

Angela Zepeda, City Clerk 

 

 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

 

 

___________________________ 

Carlos Campos, City Attorney 

 

 

STATE OF CALIFORNIA   ) 

COUNTY OF RIVERSIDE  ) ss 

CITY OF COACHELLA      ) 

 

 I, Angela Zepeda, hereby certify that the foregoing is a true and correct copy of a 

resolution, being Resolution No. 2020-06, duly passed and adopted by the City Council of the 

City of Coachella, California, at a regular meeting held this 11th day of March 2020. 

 

 

        __________________________ 

        Angela Zepeda, City Clerk 

 

  

Page 43

Item 4.



 

TENTATIVE SCHEDULE 
 

Landscaping and Lighting Maintenance District No.  1 Through 38 

 

 

Item Council Meeting Date 
Resolution 2020-06 Initiating Preparation of 

Engineer’s Report and Declaring Intention to 

Levy and Collect Assessments for Fiscal Year 

2020/2021 

March 11, 2020 

Resolution 2020-07 Preliminary Approval of 

Engineer’s Report and Setting a time and Place 

for Public Hearing to Levy and Collect 

Assessments for Fiscal Year 2020/2021 

April 22, 2020 

Resolution 2020-08 Confirming the 

Assessment and Diagram and Ordering the 

Levy and Collection of Assessments for Fiscal 

Year 2020/2021 

June 10, 2020 

 

Page 44

Item 4.



Page 45

Item 5.



 

STAFF REPORT 

3/11/2020 

TO: Honorable Mayor and City Council Members 

FROM: William B. Pattison, City Manager  

SUBJECT: Approval of the Third Amendment and Restatement of the Coachella Valley 

Association of Governments (CVAG) Joint Powers Agreement, which 

establishes the Torres Martinez Band of Cahuilla Indians as Formal Members 

CVAG 
 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 

 

Approve the addendum to the Third Amendment and Restatement of the CVAG Joint Powers 

Agreement, which establishes the Torres Martinez Desert Cahuilla Indians as formal members. 

 

BACKGROUND: 

 

CVAG was formed in November 1973 with the approval of the first Joint Powers Agreement 

(JPA). In 1989, after voters passed Measure A, CVAG amended and restated the JPA to specify 

its role as the regional transportation authority. In 1998, the JPA was amended again to include the 

City of Blythe as a member. CVAG’s members have since authorized separate JPA agreements 

for the Coachella Valley Conservation Commission and for Desert Community Energy.  

 

In April 2018, the Third Amendment to the Joint Powers Authority was approved, which better 

reflected CVAG’s mission and organizational structure and included the Agua Caliente Band of 

Cahuilla Indians and the Cabazon Band of Mission Indians. The governments in the Coachella 

Valley have long benefited from a unique relationship with the local tribal nations, whose 

reservations span across several local cities.  

 

Prior to becoming full members of the JPA, the Agua Caliente and Cabazon tribes joined CVAG 

through a Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) approved by the CVAG Executive Committee 

in October of 1998. The Torres Martinez Desert Cahuilla Indians Tribe’s joined CVAG in October 

2000. After years of successful participation, the Torres Martinez Tribe underwent internal 

changes that caused their participation to wane. The Torres Martinez also went two years without 

paying dues. In February 23, 2009, the Executive Committee elected to discontinue the Tribe’s 

membership with CVAG. In a letter sent to then Tribal Chair Mary Resvaloso, then-Interim 

Executive Director Larry Parrish indicated that if the Tribe chooses to re-join CVAG in the future, 

CVAG would welcome the discussion.  

 

Page 46

Item 5.



At the December 2, 2019 CVAG Executive Committee meeting, members considered a request 

form the Torres Martinez Desert Cahuilla Indians (Tribe) to re-join CVAG. The Executive 

Committee voted unanimously to allow the Tribe to rejoin CVAG via the attached Addendum.  

CVAG staff updated the Addendum that went before the CVAG Executive Committee, striking 

the paragraph where conditions were to be listed, as no conditions were made.  CVAG legal 

counsel has also approved the language. 

  

CVAG’s JPA requires each member jurisdiction to approve the Addendum in order to expand 

membership.  

 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

 

None. 
 

 

Attachments:  Letter from Torres Martinez Tribal Council  

Addendum to the CVAG JPA 

 

Page 47

Item 5.



ADDENDUM TO THIRD AMENDMENT AND RESTATEMENT OF THE JOINT 
POWERS AGREEMENT OF THE COACHELLA VALLEY ASSOCIATION OF 

GOVERNMENTS ADMITTING THE TORRES MARTINEZ TRIBE AS A MEMBER OF 
THE COACHELLA VALLEY ASSOCIATION OF GOVERNMENTS 

 
 
 
 This Addendum to the Third Amendment and Restatement of the Joint Powers 
Agreement of the Coachella Valley Association of Governments (“Addendum”) is entered 
into as of the date of the last signature appended to this Addendum, by and between the 
Torres Martinez Tribe (“Admittee”), on the one hand, and the County of Riverside, City of 
Coachella, City of Indio, City of La Quinta, City if Indian Wells, City of Palm Desert, City 
of Rancho Mirage, City of Cathedral City, City of Palm Springs, City of Desert Hot Springs, 
City of Blythe, Agua Caliente Band of Cahuilla Indians and Cabazon Band of Mission 
Indians (“Current Parties”), on the other hand. 
 
 
RECITALS 
 
A. Current Parties constitute the total membership of the Coachella Valley Association 
of Governments (“CVAG”) and are parties to the Third Amendment and Restatement of 
the Joint Powers Agreement of the Coachella Valley Association of Governments (“Third 
Restatement”). 
 
B. Admittee is a federally recognized tribe and public agency, as that term is defined 
in Government Code section 6500, and formerly a member of CVAG. 
 
C. Admittee desires to rejoin CVAG as a member and Current Parties are willing to 
admit Admittee as a member under the terms and conditions set forth in this Addendum. 
 
D. Section 6.1 of the Third Restatement allows for the admission of additional public 
agencies to membership in CVAG subject to consent of two-thirds of the Current Parties 
and execution of an addendum to the Third Restatement signed by all Current Parties 
and Admittee. 
 
  
NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and of the mutual promises and 
covenants herein contained, Current Parties and Admittee agree as follows: 
 
Admission of Admittee 
 
 Admittee is hereby admitted as a member of CVAG, subject to all of the rights, 
obligations and responsibilities set forth in the Third Restatement.  Execution of this 
Addendum by Admittee shall be the legal equivalent of Admittee’s execution of the Third 
Restatement as a party thereto. 
 

Page 48

Item 5.



The parties to this Addendum have caused it to be executed on their behalf as of the date 
specified below, respectively, as follows: 
 
 
City of Blythe City of Cathedral City 
 
By: _____________________________  By: _____________________________ 
 
Date: ____________ Date: ____________ 
 
 

City of Coachella City of Desert Hot Springs 
 
By: _____________________________  By: _____________________________ 
 
Date: ____________ Date: ____________ 
 
 

City of Indian Wells City of Indio 
 
By: _____________________________  By: _____________________________ 
 
Date: ____________ Date: ____________ 

 

 

City of La Quinta City of Palm Desert 
 
By: _____________________________  By: _____________________________ 
 
Date: ____________ Date: ____________ 

 

 

City of Palm Springs City of Rancho Mirage 
 
By: _____________________________  By: _____________________________ 
 
Date: ____________ Date: ____________ 

 

 

County of Riverside Agua Caliente Band of Cahuilla Indians 
 
By: _____________________________  By: _____________________________ 
 
Date: ____________ Date: ____________ 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 49

Item 5.



Cabazon Band of Mission Indians Torres Martinez Desert Cahuilla Indians 
 
By: _____________________________  By: _____________________________ 
 
Date: ____________ Date: ____________ 

 

Page 50

Item 5.



 

STAFF REPORT 

3/11/2020 

TO: Honorable Mayor and City Council Members 

FROM: William Pattison, City Manager  

SUBJECT: Investment Report – January 2020 
 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 

 

Staff recommends that the City Council receive and file the investment report for January of 2020 

 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY: 

 

On April 10, 2019, the City of Coachella along with its component units (Sanitary District, 

Educational & Governmental Access Cable Corporation, Fire Protection District and Water 

Authority) approved and adopted the current “Statement of Investment Policy”. 

 

Pursuant to Section 16 of that policy, the City Treasurer shall provide to the City Council a monthly 

investment report which provides a clear picture of the status of the current investment portfolio. 

This report shall include, at a minimum, the following information for each type of investment 

held in the City’s investment portfolio: the issuer; amount of investment; current market value; 

yield on investment; income generated from investments; dollar amount invested on all securities, 

investments and moneys held by the local agency; and shall additionally include a description of 

any of the local agency’s funds, investments, or programs; and a description of unusual investment 

activity or developments during the month for which the report is prepared. This information shall 

be provided for all City and component unit pooled investments, as well as for bond accounts, 

which are managed by outside Fiscal Agents. 

 

The interest rates presented are the most current rates available as of the date of these reports. The 

market values presented for pooled City investments are based on closing prices for the related 

investments as of the date of these reports. This information was obtained from the Wall Street 

Journal or other reliable sources of market prices. 

 

The Market values presented for investments managed by contracted parties are based on amounts 

reported by the Fiscal Agent on the most recent bank statement to be market value as of the date 

of said bank statement. The purchase date and type of investment is not included for funds held by 

the fiscal agent. 

 

Page 51

Item 6.



Attached is the Treasurer’s Report of Investments which includes an overview on investments 

which provides information on investment activity, withdrawals and deposits, interest earned, 

payment of interest and payment of principal as of the periods ending January 31, 2020. In 

addition, this report includes detailed information and current activity on individual investments. 

 

All City investments are in compliance with the guidelines established for Authorized Investments 

as specified in the Investment Policy, Section 8. 

 

There was no unusual investment activity to report. 

 

The City and Districts have sufficient moneys to meet their expenditure requirements for the next 

six months. 

 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

 

None, this report is receive and file only. 

 

Page 52

Item 6.



1 of 6 J:\Treasurer's Reports\2019-20 Treasurer Reports\01- 2020 Treasurer's Report

CURRENT BALANCE AS OF
NET: DEPOSITS 

AND/OR
INTEREST 
EARNED / PAYMENT OF PAYMENT OF BALANCE AS OF

YIELD 12/31/2019 (WITHDRAWALS) CHANGE IN VALUE INTEREST PRINCIPAL 1/31/2020

CASH ON HAND

       Wells Fargo-General Checking N/A 2,274,629.39      9,533,832.33        -                     -                     -                       11,808,461.72       
-                      

Wells Fargo-Road Maintenance SB1 N/A 922,982.59         69,218.37             -                     -                     -                       992,200.96           
-                      

     Rabobank-Payroll Account 0.0% 8,614.61             82.25                    2.31                   -                     -                       8,699.17               
-                      

Rabobank-AG Summit Account 0.0% 13,562.96           -                        -                     -                     -                       13,562.96             
-                      

Rabobank-Special Gas Tax Account 0.0% 589,335.00         141,042.64           -                     -                     -                       730,377.64           
-                      

      Petty Cash N/A 3,500.00             -                        -                     -                     -                       3,500.00                                                           
Total Cash on Hand 3,812,624.55      9,744,175.59        2.31                   -                     -                       13,556,802.45       

CASH WITH FISCAL AGENT

Union Bank of California varies 157,125.28         152,581.27           181.18               -                     -                       309,887.73           
-                      

Wells Fargo Bank, N.A. 4.6% 13,618.70           -                        11.68                 -                     -                       13,630.38             
-                      

County of Riverside N/A 163,564.94         -                        70.81                 -                     -                       163,635.75           
-                                                                  

Total Cash with Fiscal Agent 334,308.92         152,581.27           263.67               -                     -                       487,153.86                                                       
INVESTMENTS -                                            

State of California - LAIF 0.2% 4,700,007.46      -                        27,000.23          -                     -                       4,727,007.69                               
Investment Management Acct 3.3% 19,618,651.88    280,806.96           -                     -                     -                       19,899,458.84                             
Saving Account - Wells Fargo Bank 5,080.09             -                        -                     -                     -                       5,080.09                                                           

Total Investments 24,323,739.43    280,806.96           27,000.23          -                     -                       24,631,546.62       

Grand Total 28,470,672.90   10,177,563.82     27,266.21          -                       -                         38,675,502.93      

Prepared by:

Reviewed by: Date: 1/31/2020

CITY OF COACHELLA
TREASURER'S REPORT - INVESTMENT REPORT

As of  January 31, 2020
Fiscal Year 2019-2020

DESCRIPTION

Ruben Ramirez-Accounting Manager

Page 53

Item 6.



2 of 6 J:\Treasurer's Reports\2019-20 Treasurer Reports\01- 2020 Treasurer's Report

CURRENT BALANCE AS OF
NET: DEPOSITS 

AND/OR
INTEREST 
EARNED / PAYMENT OF PAYMENT OF BALANCE AS OF

YIELD 12/31/2019 (WITHDRAWALS) CHANGE IN VALUE INTEREST PRINCIPAL 1/31/2020

CITY OF COACHELLA
TREASURER'S REPORT - INVESTMENT REPORT

As of  January 31, 2020
Fiscal Year 2019-2020

DESCRIPTION

INVESTMENTS

STATE OF CALIFORNIA LOCAL AGENCY INVESTMENT FUND (LAIF)

REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY( #004) 0.3% 2,448.88             -                        14.07                 -                     -                       2,462.95               
-                      

CITY GENERAL ACCOUNT( #171) 0.3% 2,837,217.14      -                        16,299.02          -                     -                       2,853,516.16         
-                      

COACHELLA SANITARY DISTRICT 0.3% 1,860,219.03      -                        10,686.44          -                     -                       1,870,905.47         
-                      

REDEVELOPMENT BONDS 0.3% 122.41                -                        0.70                   -                     -                       123.11                                        

TOTAL LAIF ACCOUNTS 4,700,007.46      -                        27,000.23          -                     -                       4,727,007.69         

INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT ACC

MORGAN STANLEY 3.5% -                      -                        -                     -                     -                       -                        
-                      

PFM Funds 3.5% 19,618,651.88    280,806.96           -                     -                     -                       19,899,458.84       

TOTAL INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT ACCT 19,618,651.88    280,806.96           -                     -                     -                       19,899,458.84       

SAVINGS & MONEY MARKET ACCOUNTS

POLICE EVIDENCE ACCT - B of A #049 0.1% 5,080.09             -                        -                     -                     5,080.09                                                                                               
TOTAL SAVINGS ACCOUNT 5,080.09             -                        -                     -                     -                       5,080.09               

TOTAL INVESTMENTS 24,323,739.43    280,806.96           27,000.23          -                     -                       24,631,546.62       

Page 54

Item 6.



3 of 6 J:\Treasurer's Reports\2019-20 Treasurer Reports\01- 2020 Treasurer's Report

CURRENT BALANCE AS OF
NET: DEPOSITS 

AND/OR
INTEREST 
EARNED / PAYMENT OF PAYMENT OF BALANCE AS OF

YIELD 12/31/2019 (WITHDRAWALS) CHANGE IN VALUE INTEREST PRINCIPAL 1/31/2020

CITY OF COACHELLA
TREASURER'S REPORT - INVESTMENT REPORT

As of  January 31, 2020
Fiscal Year 2019-2020

DESCRIPTION

UNION BANK OF CALIFORNIA (Cost Basis reported)

COACHELLA WATER AUTHORITY

CITY OF COACHELLA WATER: WATER REFUNDING BONDS 2012 SERIES
A/C #: 6712016201 Bond Fund 0.0% 256.92                (256.23)                 0.31                   -                     -                       1.00                      
A/C #: 6712016202 Interest Account 0.0% -                      152,837.50           -                     -                     -                       152,837.50           
A/C #: 6712016203 Principal Account 0.0% -                      -                        -                     -                     -                       -                        
A/C #: 6712016204 Reserve Fund 0.0% 1.00                    -                        -                     -                     -                       1.00                      
A/C #: 6712016206 Escrow Fund 2003 0.0% -                      -                        -                     -                     -                       -                        

COACHELLA FINANCING AUTHORITY

COACHELLA SANITARY DISTRICT: WASTEWATER REV 2005-A COPS
A/C #: 6711755701 Bond Fund 0.0% -                      -                        -                     -                     -                       -                        
A/C #: 6711755702 Interest Account 0.0% -                      -                        -                     -                     -                       -                        
A/C #: 6711755703 Principal Account 0.0% -                      -                        -                     -                     -                       -                        
A/C #: 6711755704 Reserve Account 2.5% -                      -                        -                     -                     -                       -                        

-                      
RDA PA #4 2004 B  SERIES: TAX ALLOCATION BONDS
A/C #: 6711745801 Revenue Fund 0.0% -                      -                        -                     -                     -                       -                        
A/C #: 6711745802 Interest Account 0.0% -                      -                        -                     -                     -                       -                        
A/C #: 6711745803 Principal Account 0.0% -                      -                        -                     -                     -                       -                        
A/C #: 6711745804 Reserve Fund 2.5% -                      -                        -                     -                     -                       -                        

Successor Agency to the Coachella Redevelopments Agency 2014 Series
A/C #: 6712104701 0.0% 263.32                -                        0.31                   -                     -                       263.63                  
A/C #: 6712104702 0.0% -                      -                     -                       -                        
A/C #: 6712104703 0.0% -                      -                     -                       -                        
A/C #: 6712104704 0.0% 1.00                    -                        -                     -                     -                       1.00                      
A/C #: 6712104705 0.0% -                      -                        -                     -                     -                       -                        
A/C #: 6712104706 0.0% -                      -                        -                     -                     -                       -                        
A/C #: 6712104707 Escrow Funds 0.0% -                      -                        -                     -                     -                       -                        
A/C #: 6712104708 Escrow Funds 0.0% -                      -                        -                     -                     -                       -                        

Page 55

Item 6.



4 of 6 J:\Treasurer's Reports\2019-20 Treasurer Reports\01- 2020 Treasurer's Report

CURRENT BALANCE AS OF
NET: DEPOSITS 

AND/OR
INTEREST 
EARNED / PAYMENT OF PAYMENT OF BALANCE AS OF

YIELD 12/31/2019 (WITHDRAWALS) CHANGE IN VALUE INTEREST PRINCIPAL 1/31/2020

CITY OF COACHELLA
TREASURER'S REPORT - INVESTMENT REPORT

As of  January 31, 2020
Fiscal Year 2019-2020

DESCRIPTION

COACHELLA SANITARY DISTRICT

WASTEWATER SERIES 2015A
A/C #: 6712148600 0.0% -                      -                        -                     -                     -                       -                        
A/C #: 6712148601 0.0% 26.69                  -                        -                     -                     -                       26.69                    
A/C #: 6712148602 0.0% -                      -                        -                     -                     -                       -                        
A/C #: 6712148603 0.0% -                      -                        -                     -                     -                       -                        
A/C #: 6712148604 0.0% 1.00                    -                        -                     -                     -                       1.00                      
A/C #: 6712148605 0.0% -                      -                        -                     -                     -                       -                        
A/C #: 6712148606 0.0% -                      -                        -                     -                     -                       -                        
A/C #: 6712148607 0.0% -                      -                        -                     -                     -                       -                        
A/C #: 6712148608 0.0% -                      -                        -                     -                     -                       -                        

COACHELLA SANITARY DISTRICT: PROJECT FUND 2011
A/C #: 6711963500 Project Fund 2011 0.0% 25,144.16           -                        32.18                 -                     -                       25,176.34             

COACHELLA REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY

MERGED PROJECT AREAS BONDS 98 & 99: BONDS 2013
A/C #: 6712071401 Interest Account 0.0% 298.44                -                        0.31                   -                     -                       298.75                  
A/C #: 6712071402 Interest Acc 0.0% -                      -                        -                     -                     -                       -                        
A/C #: 6712071403 Principal Acc 0.0% -                      -                        -                     -                     -                       -                        
A/C #: 6712071404 Reserve Account 0.0% 1.00                    -                        -                     -                     -                       1.00                      

SA TO COACHELLA RDA REFUNDING BONDS SERIES 2016A & 2016B
A/C #: 6712160601 0.0% 364.99                -                        0.42                   -                     -                       365.41                  
A/C #: 6712160602 0.0% -                      -                        -                     -                     -                       -                        
A/C #: 6712160604 0.0% -                      -                        -                     -                     -                       -                        
A/C #: 6712160604 0.0% 1.00                    -                        -                     -                     -                       1.00                      
A/C #: 6712160605 0.0% -                      -                        -                     -                     -                       -                        
A/C #: 6712160606 0.0% -                      -                        -                     -                     -                       -                        
A/C #: 6712160607 0.0% -                      -                        -                     -                     -                       -                        
A/C #: 6712160608 0.0% -                      -                        -                     -                     -                       -                        
A/C #: 6712160609 0.0% -                      -                        -                     -                     -                       -                        

COACHELLA LEASE BONDS
Page 56

Item 6.



5 of 6 J:\Treasurer's Reports\2019-20 Treasurer Reports\01- 2020 Treasurer's Report

CURRENT BALANCE AS OF
NET: DEPOSITS 

AND/OR
INTEREST 
EARNED / PAYMENT OF PAYMENT OF BALANCE AS OF

YIELD 12/31/2019 (WITHDRAWALS) CHANGE IN VALUE INTEREST PRINCIPAL 1/31/2020

CITY OF COACHELLA
TREASURER'S REPORT - INVESTMENT REPORT

As of  January 31, 2020
Fiscal Year 2019-2020

DESCRIPTION

A/C #: 6712179800 Special Fund 0.0% -                      -                        -                     -                     -                       -                        
A/C #: 6712179801 Interest Account 0.0% 99.63                  -                        6.13                   -                     -                       105.76                  
A/C #: 6712179802 Interest Account 0.0% -                      -                        -                     -                     -                       -                        
A/C #: 6712179803 Principal Account 0.0% -                      -                        -                     -                     -                       -                        
A/C #: 6712179804 Reserve Account 3.4% 1.00                    -                        -                     -                     -                       1.00                      
A/C #: 6712179805 Project Fund 0.0% 130,665.13         -                        141.52               -                     -                       130,806.65           
A/C #: 6712179806 Project Fund 0.0% -                      -                        -                     -                     -                       -                        
A/C #: 6712179807 Project Fund 0.0% -                      -                        -                     -                     -                       -                        

TOTAL UNION BANK OF CALIFORNIA 157,125.28         152,581.27           181.18                -                       -                         309,887.73           

WELLS FARGO BANK, N.A.
GAS TAX BONDS SERIES 2008-A
A/C #: 22863900 Revenue Fund 0.0% (0.00)                   -                        -                     -                     -                       (0.00)                     
A/C #: 22863902 Interest Account 0.0% 20.41                  -                        1.70                   -                     -                       22.11                    
A/C #: 22863903 Interest Account 0.0% 286.21                -                        0.28                   -                     -                       286.49                  
A/C #: 22863904 Reserve Fund 4.6% 0.00                    -                        -                     -                     -                       0.00                      
A/C #: 22863906 Administration Fund 0.0% (0.00)                   -                     -                       (0.00)                     
A/C #: 22863909 Acquisition Fund 0.0% -                      -                        -                     -                     -                       -                                                                                                                                                                                                          
GAS TAX BONDS SERIES 2019
A/C #: 83925300 Debt Service Fund 0.0% 10,954.57           -                        10.94                 -                     -                       10,965.51             
A/C #: 83925301 Interest Account 0.0% -                      -                        -                     -                     -                       -                        
A/C #: 83925302 Principal Account 0.0% -                      -                        -                     -                     -                       -                        
A/C #: 83925304 Reserve Fund 0.0% -                      -                        -                     -                     -                       -                        
A/C #: 83925305 Cost of Issuance Fund 0.0% 2,357.51             -                        (1.24)                  -                     -                       2,356.27               
A/C #: 83972700 Escrow Account 0.0% -                      -                        -                     -                     -                       -                        
A/C #: 83972700 Other Escrow Fund 0.0% -                      -                        -                     -                     -                       -                                                                                                                 

TOTAL WELLS FARGO BANK 13,618.70       -                   11.68             -                  -                   13,630.38         

COUNTY OF RIVERSIDE

COUNTY OF RIVERSIDE - FIRE 163,557.53         -                        70.81                 -                     -                       163,628.34           
COUNTY OF RIVERSIDE - SANITARY 7.41                    -                        -                     -                     -                       7.41                      

                                                                                         Page 57

Item 6.



6 of 6 J:\Treasurer's Reports\2019-20 Treasurer Reports\01- 2020 Treasurer's Report

CURRENT BALANCE AS OF
NET: DEPOSITS 

AND/OR
INTEREST 
EARNED / PAYMENT OF PAYMENT OF BALANCE AS OF

YIELD 12/31/2019 (WITHDRAWALS) CHANGE IN VALUE INTEREST PRINCIPAL 1/31/2020

CITY OF COACHELLA
TREASURER'S REPORT - INVESTMENT REPORT

As of  January 31, 2020
Fiscal Year 2019-2020

DESCRIPTION

TOTAL COUNTY OF RIVERSIDE 163,564.94         -                        70.81                 -                     -                       163,635.75           

GRAND TOTAL FISCAL AGENT CASH 334,308.92         152,581.27           263.67               -                     -                       487,153.86           ⑪

Page 58

Item 6.



 

STAFF REPORT 

3/11/2020 

TO: Honorable Mayor and City Council Members 

FROM: Maritza Martinez, Public Works Director   

SUBJECT: Authorize 1) surplus of the City’s 1990 Dump Truck International unit and 2) 

purchase of a new 2021 Dump Truck International unit to replace the 1990 unit, 

in the amount of $99,675.78.   
 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 

 

Authorize 1) surplus of the City’s 1990 Dump Truck International unit and 2) purchase of a 2021 

Dump Truck International unit to replace the 1990 unit, in the amount of $99,675.78.   

 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY:   

The City of Coachella currently owns a 1990 International Dump Truck (vehicle identification 

number 1HTSC2VNXLH682922), which has recently become inoperable due to a failed 

transmission.  This unit is used weekly by various divisions including: Parks, Sanitation, Streets 

and Water.  The current value of the unit is estimated at $5,500.  The required transmission 

replacement needed to return this unit to service is estimated at over $15,000, which exceeds the 

estimated value of the unit.   

As per the City’s purchasing policy equipment that exceeds $5,000 in value must obtain City 

Council approval to surplus.  In the unit’s current condition, the estimated value is $5,500 and staff 

requests the authorization to surplus this item to the highest bidder through a formal public auction 

process.   

As this unit is regularly used by numerous departments staff is also requesting authorization to 

purchase a replacement unit.  As per the City’s Purchasing Procedures and Regulations all 

purchases in excess of $15,000 require City Council approval and completion of a formal bid 

process.  To meet this requirement staff requests approval to piggyback on a formal procurement 

process completed by Sourcewell, a public agency, awarded Contract No. 081716-NAF to Dion 

International Trucks.  Staff recommends award of a 2021 International Dump Truck, in the amount 

of $99,675.78, which upholds the pricing identified in the procurement process completed by 

Sourcewell; the proposal provided to the City of Coachella and specifications are attached hereto.   

 

 

Page 59

Item 7.



FISCAL IMPACT:   

Staff is requesting the amount required to purchase a replacement dump truck, totaling $99,675.88, 

be allocated from the undesignated reserves of the following funds: Coachella Water Authority 

($33,225.26), Coachella Sanitary District ($33,225.26), and General Fund ($33,225.26).  Staff is 

requesting this total amount of $99,675.78 be budgeted in Fleet Division expenditure account 101-

11-164-90-741 to allow for the purchase of a replacement dump truck unit.   

 

Attachments: 

International Proposal/Bid  

  

 

Page 60

Item 7.



Page 61

Item 7.



Page 62

Item 7.



Page 63

Item 7.



Page 64

Item 7.



Page 65

Item 7.



Page 66

Item 7.



Page 67

Item 7.



Page 68

Item 7.



Page 69

Item 7.



Page 70

Item 7.



Page 71

Item 7.



Page 72

Item 7.



 

STAFF REPORT 

1/22/2020 

TO: Honorable Mayor and City Council Members 

FROM: Cástulo R. Estrada, Utilities Manager 

SUBJECT: Authorize the Purchase of Sedaru Asset & Operational Management Software 

Licensing for Calendar Year 2020 at a cost of $31,080.00. 
 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 

 
Authorize the Purchase of Sedaru Asset & Operational Management Software Licensing for Calendar 

Year 2020 at a cost of $31,080.00. 

 

BACKGROUND: 

 
On November 17, 2016, the City of Coachella Utilities Department solicited a Request for  

Proposals (RFP) from firms to provide GIS, Asset, and Operational Management Software Services to the 

City of Coachella. After careful consideration, the Utilities Department determined IDModeling (IDM), 

to be the most advantageous and most responsible proposing party and awarded the proposal for 

GIS/Asset and Operational Management Software Services to IDModeling.  

 

Award of contract to IDModeling came with the purchase of 3-year Sedaru Asset & Operational 

Management Software Licensing for three (3) years, starting December 15, 2016 which ended in 

December 2019.  

 

The Utilities Department has initiated its asset management program for water & sewer system 

assets.  The first step to this program involved creating, collecting data for, developing, and improving the 

accuracy of foundational data sets, from its water & sewer system geographical information system (GIS) 

mapping to the condition, state, and status of its underground assets, both linear (pipes) and vertical 

(pumps, for example).  This program has involved deploying Sedaru as its asset management software, 

inclusive of Sedaru OMNI for work management, Sedaru Fieldforce for field data collection, Sedaru 

Outage for leak/outage management, and integrations to other information systems that provide the utility 

operations and maintenance team with data to inform better, more insightful decision making.  This 

renewal request will maintain the software system for utility O&M staff to continue this path to mature 

these foundational data sets, to better plan and operate our water & sewer system infrastructure.    

 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

 
Staff is requesting the total cost of $31,080.00 be allocated from undesignated Coachella Water Authority 

reserves in the amount of $15,540.00 and undesignated Coachella Sanitary District reserves in the amount 

of $15,540.00. Amounts to be budgeted in the Computer Software account for Water Operations 178-21-

120-10-612-000 and in the Computer Software account for Sanitary Operations 361-21-120-10-612-000. 

Page 73

Item 8.



Invoice
Date: 11/19/2019

Invoice # 301-001-06

Bill To
City of Coachella 
 1515 6th Street 
Coachella, CA 92236

Project/Job
Sedaru Asset & Operational Management 
Software for Water & Sewer
Unlimited Users

168 E Arrow Hwy STE 101
San Dimas, CA 91773
(626) 244-0700

P.O. # Payment Terms

Net 30

Due Date

12/18/2019

CSM

Paul Hauffen

PM

Ramon Gallegos

Subscription Term

Dec 15, 2019 - Dec 14, 2020

E-mail

valorieramos@sedaru.com

Web Site

www.sedaru.com
TOTAL

We appreciate your prompt payment.

DESCRIPTION QUANTITY U/M RATE AMOUNT
1 31,080.00 31,080.00Sedaru Enterprise Platform for Water:  Asset and 

Network Management - Real-time, mobile work 
management and network intelligence for Pipes, 
Hydrants, Valves, Customer Meters, Pumps and Tanks

Sedaru Outage: Plan and respond to outages, 
minimize customer impacts, and reduce water loss

Wachs Valve Turning Machine Integration Point

Sedaru Platform Integration Points: Customer 
Information System (CIS)

SCADA Wonderware Integration Point

Sedaru Enterprise Platform for Sewer:  Asset and 
Network Management - Real-time, mobile work 
management and network intelligence for Gravity 
Mains, Force Mains, Manholes, Lift Stations, and Wet 
Wells

Please remit payment to: Sedaru, Inc| For electronic payment, see below 
Wells Fargo Bank N.A.| Routing # 122000247|  Account #: 7914774331
Tax ID: 14-1909685

$31,080.00

Page 74

Item 8.



 

STAFF REPORT 

2/26/2020 

TO: Honorable Mayor and City Council Members 

FROM: Gabriel Martin, Economic Development Manager  

SUBJECT: Shady Lane Park Art Mural Installation Project 
 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 

 

Staff recommends approving the cost to install an art mural exhibition located at Shady Lane 

Park in the amount of $8,229. 

 

BACKGROUND: 

 

On February 12, 2020, the City Council approved the rehabilitation of Shady Lane Park by the 

philanthropy group Fifth Generation, Inc., which represents Tito’s Vodka from Austin, Texas. 

Fifth Generation, Inc. contracted with Urban Habitat to design and reconstruct Shady Lane Park 

with the intent of having employees and volunteers of Tito’s Vodka install irrigation systems, 

plants and trees, and other recreational amenities on February 27, 2020. This project did not use 

any public funds and was entirely funded by Tito’s Vodka.  

 

Page 75

Item 9.



 

DISCUSSION/ANALYSIS: 

 

Fifth Generation, Inc. requested to install a new public art mural exhibition in the park to go with 

the existing public art installations in the area. Local artist Armando Lerma was approached to 

design an art mural on the concrete slab under the shade structure at Shady Lane Park. The new 

art mural will be 25’ x 30’ = 750 square feet. The design concept is below: 

 

 
 

ALTERNATIVES: 

 

1. Not approve the installation of a new art mural exhibition at Shady Lane Park 

 

2. Provide alternative direction 

 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

 

If the City Council approves the staff recommendation, the $8,229 will be withdrawn from the 

Special Revenue Funds (130) – Development Impact Fees for Public Art for the Fiscal Year 

2018-19. 

 

ATTACHMENT(S): 
 

Shady Lane Park Art Mural Installation Presentation 

 

Page 76

Item 9.



ITEM 7: MURAL INSTALLATION – 
SHADY LANE PARK 

Page 77

Item 9.



PARK SITE – CONCRETE SLAB 

Page 78

Item 9.



MURAL DESIGN 

Page 79

Item 9.



MURAL MEANING 

• The artist decided to use “images are based on 
birds, flowers and a rabbit and is titled, “Community 
Garden” to tie in with the rest of the work being 
done at the park. The style and color scheme is 
inspired by traditional embroidery from Mexico. The 
garden with its flowers, birds and rabbit is meant to 
symbolize harmony and fertility.” 

  
 

Page 80

Item 9.



MURAL PROJECT SPECIFICS 

• Artist: Armando Lerma 
 

• Artwork Dimensions: 25’ x 30’ = 750 square feet 
 

• Cost: $8,000 (Public Art DIF Fund) 
 

• Incorporate into our Mural Walking Art Tour 
 
 

Page 81

Item 9.



QUESTIONS/COMMENTS 

Page 82

Item 9.



 

STAFF REPORT 

1/22/2020 

TO: Honorable Mayor and City Council Members 

FROM: Cástulo R. Estrada, Utilities Manager 

SUBJECT: Authorize the Purchase of Thirty (30) James Jones J-4060 Fire Hydrants at a 

Cost of $68,847.90. 
 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 

 
Authorize the Purchase of Thirty (30) James Jones J-4060 Fire Hydrants at a Cost of $68,847.90. 

 

BACKGROUND: 

 
On May 8th, 2019 the City of Coachella met with Walton Global Holdings, Ltd. (Walton) regarding the 

real property commonly known as “Vista Escondida” Tract 33264. The property was sold to D.R. Horton, 

Inc. and it was agreed that repairs to public improvements and facilities serving the property are required. 

Such public improvements and facilities were previously accepted by the City. The City acknowledged 

installing missing fire hydrants. There are approximately 25 missing hydrants.  

 

Hydrants are also damaged by vehicles or stolen throughout the year. Purchasing the thirty hydrants will 

allow us to have inventory to complete the installation of hydrants at Vista Escondida and have inventory 

to replace damaged or stolen hydrants across the City. 

 

We requested proposals from Western Water Works Supply Company and Core and Main which are 

attached to this report.  

 

 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

 
The 2019-2020 adopted budget has the required funds under the Water Operations General Supplies 

account 178-21-120-10-610-000 to cover the purchase.  

Page 83

Item 10.



PROPOSAL ID QUOTE NO. DATE
COACHELLA- HYD REHAB 54939 03/05/20

PROPOSAL SUBMITTED BY:

WESTERN WATER WORKS
85-998 JONES CT
COACHELLA, CA - 92236
PHONE: (909)597-7000
FAX:
www.wwwsco.com

PREPARED FOR: CITY OF COACHELLA
1515 SIXTH ST
COACHELLA CA 92236

CONTACT: CASTULO ESTRADA
PHONE NO: (760)501-8113/
E-MAIL: CESTRADA@coachella.org

PROJECT NAME

AGENCY

PREPARED BY
Brad Paterson
PHONE NO.

E-MAIL
brad.paterson@wwwsco.com

SALES REP
ETHERIDGE / Paterson

E-MAIL
mike.etheridge@wwwsco.com

PLEASE REVIEW THIS PROPOSAL VERY CAREFULLY. THANK YOU FOR YOUR CONSIDERATION.

NOTE:
SALES TAX IS NOT INCLUDED

WARNING:
Material costs are unstable. Beginning in 2018, the U.S. Government has begun to
implement new tarrifs that have both directly and indirectly led to cost increases
from many of our vendors. There is also the potential that tariffs could broaden or
increase further as trade relations develop. This uncertainty has caused many of our
vendors to warn of additional cost increases that may go into effect in the near
future, but without a clear timeline. Therefore, we can only hold the prices in this
proposal on a 15/30 basis, which means prices are firm for 15 days, and material must
ship within 30 days. We apologize for the problems this may create and are doing the
best that we can to manage the situation. Thank you for your understanding.

COVER PAGE

PROPOSAL

Page 84

Item 10.



PROPOSAL

85-998 JONES CT COACHELLA, CA - 92236
PHONE: (909)597-7000 | FAX:

PROPOSAL ID QUOTE NO. DATE
COACHELLA- HYD REHAB 54939 03/05/20

LN# PRODUCT AND DESCRIPTION QTY UM PRICE TOTAL

PAGE 1

BID TOTAL

   1 J4060-6H                6X4X(2) 2-1/2 DI HYD 6H DI CAPS 1-1/8 PENT     30 EA    2258.75    67762.50
   3 BBN4-316                4 150# 316 SS BOLT W/BLUE NUT SET              30 SET     28.58      857.40
   5 6-8-BRRG                6 X1/8 150# BLACK RUBBER RIBBED RING GSKT      60 EA       3.80      228.00

   6                                                                                            68847.90

               NOTE: THIS PROPOSAL DOES NOT INCLUDE SALES TAX.

Last Page
Page 85

Item 10.



 

 

Terms and Conditions of Sale: 

 

All products and materials offered for sale are subject to these "Terms and Conditions of 

Sale." Quoted prices may be subject to a price adjustment after the expiration date noted 

due to a price adjustment from our vendor. The list of materials described in this 

agreement, and the quantity shown herein, represents our interpretation of the plans and 

specifications, if any, and is for estimating purposes only. It is not guaranteed for 

accuracy or completeness, but is furnished only as a guide. The obligation and the 

responsibility for ordering correct types and verifying quantities of materials rest solely 

with the Purchaser. 
 

It is the Purchaser’s responsibility to inspect materials for damage or shortage at the time 

of delivery. Claims for damage or shortage must be acknowledged at the time of delivery. 

Purchaser shall furnish people and equipment to unload material. 
 

Material may not be returned without our consent and a copy of the invoice or delivery 

ticket. 

a) Standard items normally carried in our inventory and returned in a new condition, 

may be subject to a restocking charge. 

b) Non-standard items (non-stocking) will be subject to a restocking charge and no 

credit will be given until such credit is received by us from our vendor, less 

freight. 
 

We shall not be responsible for shipment delays caused by strikes, embargos, fires, 

accidents, or any other causes beyond our control. 
 

Purchaser agrees to pay in full and according to the terms of the sale as indicated on our 

invoices which is NET 30 DAYS unless stated otherwise. If Purchaser fails to pay 

according to terms, Purchaser agrees to pay a late charge at the highest legal rate per 

month on past due invoices. Should an attorney or a collection agency be employed by us 

to collect on any debts of the Purchaser, the Purchaser agrees to pay all actual cost of 

collection, attorney’s fees, costs and interest on the past due amount. 
 

Materials are warranted only under the conditions and to the extent that they are 

warranted by the manufacturer(s). We assume no liability of any kind for any direct or 

indirect damages including, but not limited to, labor cost, expenses, project delays or any 

type of consequential damages resulting from the use of the material claimed to be 

defective. 
 

The terms and conditions of this agreement are the entire integrated agreement between 

the parties hereto and shall supersede all previous communications, representations or 

agreements either oral or written between the parties. Any order placed, orally or in 

writing, pursuant to the terms of this proposal shall be deemed acceptable of its terms, 

conditions, and pricing. 

 

 

 

 

 

 
Sept 2013 Version 

PROPOSAL
PROPOSAL ID QUOTE NO. DATE

COACHELLA- HYD REHAB 54939 03/05/20

PROPOSAL

Page 86

Item 10.



Page 87

Item 10.



Page 88

Item 10.



 

STAFF REPORT 

3/11/2020 

TO: Honorable Mayor and City Council Members 

FROM: Luis Lopez, Development Services Director  

SUBJECT: Resolution No. 2020-17 approving Tentative Parcel Map No. 37833 to allow the 

subdivision of 5.76 acres of developed land into two lots including one 2.79-acres 

lot and one 2.97-acre lot, respectively to allow a two-phase multifamily 

residential development project at 84-900 Bagdad Avenue.  Community Housing 

Opportunities Corporation, Applicant. 
 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 

 

Staff recommends that the City Council approve Resolution No. 2020-17 approving Tentative 

Parcel Map (TPM 37833) to subdivide 5.76 acres of developed land into one 2.79-acre lot and one 

2.97-acre lot, respectively, to allow a two-phase multifamily residential development project at 

84-900 Bagdad Avenue.  

 

BACKGROUND: 

 

The subject site has a 50-unit multifamily affordable housing project that was built during the 

1970’s in two phases.  There are six clustered buildings in the front portion of the site, and four 

clustered buildings in the rear portion of the site.  The dwellings consist of two and three bedroom 

dwellings with detached carports serving the residences with common area open space between 

the buildings and minimal amenities.  The site has a reduced street frontage along Bagdad Avenue 

such that most of the dwellings are not visible from the street. The aerial photo below depicts a 

birds-eye view of the existing property as viewed from the south side of Bagdad Avenue, looking 

north.  

 

Page 89

Item 11.



 
Google Earth Image – CV Apartments 

 

The applicant and current owner, Community Housing Opportunities Corporation (CHOC) is a 

recognized affordable housing development corporation from Northern California.  They have 

purchased the project and have been securing several funding sources in order to fund the new 

development and for reinstatement of the affordable housing covenants, through state and federal 

funding opportunities.   

 

On February 5, 2020 the Planning Commission reviewed Tentative Parcel Map No. 37833, and 

recommended to the City Council approval of the proposed two-lot subdivision of the land.  The 

Commission also took approval action on Architectural Review No. 19-10 which included the 

demolition of the existing 50 dwellings and construction of a new 110-unit multifamily residential 

development, proposed in two phases.  

 

Zoning and General Plan Designation:  

 

The subject site is in the R-M (Residential Multiple Family) zoning district which allows 

development densities that are consistent with the City’s General Plan.  The General Plan 

designation for this site is “Urban Neighborhood” which allows very high density residential uses 

between 20 – 38 dwelling units per acre.  The proposed project proposes a density of approximately 

19.09 dwelling units per acre, which is substantially consistent with the intended density and 

Page 90

Item 11.



character of this sector of the City.  The General Plan Land Use Map and the City Zoning District 

Map samples are shown below. 

 

 

  
General Plan Map:                                                                                       Zoning Map: 

 

DISCUSSION/ANALYSIS: 

 

The applicant has submitted entitlement applications for a Tentative Parcel Map to subdivide the 

5.76 acres into two lots making up the first and second phases of development.  The northerly 2.97 

acres of the property will be the first phase of development, and the southerly 2.71 acres of the site 

will be the second phase of construction.  The owners have stated that existing families living in 

the complex will have the opportunity to move into one of the new dwellings, as units become 

available, or get relocation assistance to a comparable residence in the larger vicinity.    

 

The proposed two-lot subdivision is intended solely for financing and construction phasing 

purposes, and will not create two independent lots.  The tentative map shows reciprocal access 

easements over both lots, indicating that the two lots will function as one development site for the 

future construction of the project.  

 

A copy of Tentative Parcel Map No. 37833 (subdivision map exhibit) and the corresponding 

phasing exhibit are shown below.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 91

Item 11.



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Tentative Parcel Map No. 37833 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 92

Item 11.



 
Phasing Exhibit – CV Apartments 

 

 

Architectural Review Information:  

 

The Planning Commission took final action on the proposed development of the project which will 

include eight (8) freestanding buildings each containing a variety of floor plans and elevation 

facades.  All buildings are two-story and three-story structures, except for a freestanding 

community building in the central part of the project which will be a one-story structure.  The 

project seeks to obtain “development incentives” for affordable housing in order to allow a reduced 

unit size of 600 square feet for one-bedroom unit (750 sq. ft. minimum), 870 square feet for two-

bedroom unit (900 sq. ft. minimum), and 1030 square feet for three-bedroom units (1050 sq. ft. 

minimum).  The floor plans include one-story units on the ground floor, and two-story “townhouse 

style” units with one-story “flats” on the 3rd floors.   

PHASE I 

PHASE II 

Page 93

Item 11.



 

The site plan and architectural exhibits reviewed by the Planning Commission are shown below. 

 

 

 
 

Page 94

Item 11.



 

 

 

 

 

Page 95

Item 11.



 

 

TENTATIVE PARCEL MAP NO.  37833 

 

The proposed tentative parcel map will create two lots that are intended solely for financing and 

construction phasing purposes.  At buildout, the two lots will be indistinguishable as portions of 

the development site.  The new lot line / subdivision configuration is shown below. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 96

Item 11.



 

 

 

As proposed, Parcel 1 on the northern portion of the site does not have direct street frontage and 

will be accessed via a recorded ingress-egress easement.  While this scenario is not ideal for a 

typical “stand alone” development, the map will have reciprocal access over the common driveway 

areas to maintain the site as one development project site.  The Coachella Municipal Code and the 

Subdivision Map Act require the City Council to make specific findings in order to grant the 

subdivision approval.  Staff has included these findings and the standard conditions of approval in 

the attached resolution.  The required findings for the tentative map are as shown below. 

 

1. The proposed tentative map is consistent with the General Plan and the City of Coachella 

Official Zoning Map. The proposed subdivision is within a land use designation of General 

Neighborhood according to the General Plan 2035 Land Use Element which allows very high 

density residential. The subdivision is consistent with the development intensity permitted by 

the Urban Neighborhood Land Use category.  Tentative Parcel Map 37833 is in compliance 

with the standards of the Zoning Ordinance with respect to the R-M (Residential Multifamily) 

including minimum lot size, minimum lot depth, and minimum lot width. Additionally, This 

subdivision will accommodate for a variety of housing types and is consistent with the City’s 

vision for this area to be redeveloped with urban residential uses with close proximity to 

commercial and open space amenities. 

  

2. The site is physically suitable for the future commercial development and density. The 

proposed subdivision will provide adequate sized lots for a phased multifamily residential 

development. The two proposed lots will have adequate dimensions, and ingress and egress to 

accommodate future development by recording easements for ingress and egress and reciprocal 

access over the private driveways.  

 

3. The design of the subdivision and type of improvements are not likely to cause substantial 

environmental damage or substantially and avoidably injure fish or wildlife or their habitat. 

There are no sensitive habitats or bodies of water in the immediate vicinity of the site.  For 

future development proposed on the site, all drainage from increased impervious material on 

the site will be contained on site for a 100-year storm event, as required by City regulations. 

As such there would be no impact to the Coachella Valley Whitewater Channel which is more 

than two miles away from the site.  

 

4. The design of the subdivision and type of improvements are not likely to cause any serious 

public health problems. The proposed subdivision would allow for future development of 

residential uses intended and identified in the Genera Plan and the zoning code.  All future 

development would be reviewed for compliance with applicable California Building Code 

regulations prior to issuance of any building permits.  

 

5. The design of the subdivision and type of improvements will not conflict with easements, 

acquired by the public at large, for access through or use of, property within the proposed 

subdivision. The proposed subdivision would create two lots for future residential 

Page 97

Item 11.



development with adequate street access, and utility connections to all lots.  There are no 

known easements that would conflict with the proposed subdivision.   

 

6. The City of Coachella has determined that the proposed project will not have significant 

environmental effects upon the environment pursuant to a Section 15183 CEQA analysis that 

was prepared for the project, and which tiers off of the City’s General Plan Update 

Environmental Impact Report.  As such, there are not additional mitigation measures required 

and no additional environmental reviews for the subdivision to be approved.  

 

ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW: 

 
City staff determined that the proposed project qualifies for a streamlined environmental review 
process pursuant to Section 15183 of the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) 
Guidelines for projects which are consistent with the development density established by existing 
zoning, community plan, or general plan policies for which an Environmental Impact Report (EIR) 
was certified, except as might be necessary to examine whether there are project-specific 
significant effects which are peculiar to the project or its sites. Therefore, the City has limited its 
examination of environmental effects to those which the City has determined: (1) are peculiar to 
the project or the parcel on which the project would be located; (2) were not analyzed as significant 
effects in a prior EIR on the zoning action, general plan, or community plan, with which the project 
is consistent; (3) are potentially significant off-site impacts and cumulative impacts which were 
not discussed in the prior EIR prepared for the general plan, community plan or zoning action; or  
(4) are previously identified significant effects which, as a result of substantial new information 
which was not known at the time the EIR was certified, are determined to have a more severe 
adverse impact than discussed in the prior EIR.  
 
The study found that the project does not require new mitigation because it is consistent with the 
findings of the Coachella General Plan Update EIR that was certified in 2015. Potential project-
related impacts, including cumulative and off-site impacts, were fully addressed in the EIR, and 
applicable mitigation measures were provided to reduce project-specific impacts. There are no 
significant off-site or cumulative impacts that are peculiar to the project or its site that have not 
already been fully addressed in a previous environmental analysis or that cannot be substantially 
mitigated through the application of uniformly applied standards and policies. A copy of the 15183 
analysis is attached to this staff report. 

 

ALTERNATIVES: 

 

1. Adopt Resolution No. 2020-17 approving TPM #37833 with the findings and conditions 

contained in the attached resolution.  

2. Adopt Resolution No. 202-17 approving TPM# 37833 with modified conditions of approval.  

3. Make findings to deny TPM #37833.  

4. Continue this item and provide staff direction.  

 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

 

There are no fiscal impacts associated with approval of the proposed two-lot subdivision of the 

property in that it merely represents a financing and construction phasing tool for the proposed 

future development of the subject site.  

Page 98

Item 11.



 

RECOMMENDED ALTERNATIVE(S): 
 

Staff recommends Alternative #1 or #2 above.  
 

 

Attachments:     Resolution No. 2020-17 approving TPM 37833 

                          CEQA Section 15183 Analysis 

                          Correspondence 

 

 

Page 99

Item 11.



RESOLUTION NO. 2020-17 

 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

COACHELLA, CALIFORNIA APPROVING TENTATIVE PARCEL MAP 

NO. 37833 TO SUBDIVIDE 5.76 ACRES (APN 768-210-025 & 026) INTO 

TWO PARCELS FOR FINANCING AND DEVELOPMENT PHASING 

PURPOSES ON PROPERTY LOCATED AT 84-900 BAGDAD AVENUE. 

COMMUNITY HOUSING OPPORTUNITIES CORPORATION, 

APPLICANT. 

 

 WHEREAS, Community Housing Opportunities Corporation (CHOC) has filed an 

application for Tentative Parcel Map No. 37833 to subdivide approximately 5.76 acres into two 

(2) parcels, located at 84-900 Bagdad Avenue, more particularly described in Exhibit “A” attached 

hereto and made a part hereof; and, 

 

 WHEREAS, the City has processed said application pursuant to the Subdivision Map Act 

(commencing with Section 64600, Title 7 of the Government Code and the California 

Environmental Quality Act of 1970) as amended; and, 

 

 WHEREAS, on February 5, 2020, the Planning Commission of the City of Coachella held 

a duly noticed and published Public Hearing and considered the Tentative Parcel Map as presented 

by the applicant, adopting the finding, conditions, and staff recommendations; and, 

 

 WHEREAS, the Planning Commission does recommend the approval to the City Council 

of Tentative Parcel Map No. 37833, subject to the recommended findings and conditions of 

approval contained in the staff report and contained herein; and,  

 

  WHEREAS, on March 11, 2020, the City Council Planning Commission of the City of 

Coachella held a duly noticed and published Public Hearing, took public testimony, and considered 

the Tentative Parcel Map as presented by the applicant, adopting the finding, conditions, and staff 

recommendations. 

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the City Council of the City of 

Coachella, California does hereby APPROVE Tentative Parcel Map No. 37833 with the findings 

and conditions listed below. 

 

Findings for Tentative Parcel Map 37833 

 

1. The proposed tentative map is consistent with the General Plan and the City of 

Coachella Official Zoning Map. The proposed subdivision is within a land use designation of 

General Neighborhood according to the General Plan 2035 Land Use Element which allows very 

high density residential. The subdivision is consistent with the development intensity permitted by 

the Urban Neighborhood Land Use category.  Tentative Parcel Map 37833 is in compliance with 

the standards of the Zoning Ordinance with respect to the R-M (Residential Multifamily) including 

minimum lot size, minimum lot depth, and minimum lot width. Additionally, This subdivision will 

accommodate for a variety of housing types and is consistent with the City’s vision for this area to 

Page 100

Item 11.



Resolution No. 2020-17 

Page 2 
 

be redeveloped with urban residential uses with close proximity to commercial and open space 

amenities. 

  

2. The site is physically suitable for the future commercial development and density. 

The proposed subdivision will provide adequate sized lots for a phased multifamily residential 

development. The two proposed lots will have adequate dimensions, and ingress and egress to 

accommodate future development by recording easements for ingress and egress and reciprocal 

access over the private driveways.  

 

3. The design of the subdivision and type of improvements are not likely to cause 

substantial environmental damage or substantially and avoidably injure fish or wildlife or their 

habitat. There are no sensitive habitats or bodies of water in the immediate vicinity of the site.  For 

future development proposed on the site, all drainage from increased impervious material on the 

site will be contained on site for a 100-year storm event, as required by City regulations. As such 

there would be no impact to the Coachella Valley Whitewater Channel which is more than two 

miles away from the site. 

 

4. The design of the subdivision and type of improvements are not likely to cause any 

serious public health problems. The proposed subdivision would allow for future development of 

residential uses intended and identified in the Genera Plan and the zoning code.  All future 

development would be reviewed for compliance with applicable California Building Code 

regulations prior to issuance of any building permits.  

 

5. The design of the subdivision and type of improvements will not conflict with 

easements, acquired by the public at large, for access through or use of, property within the 

proposed subdivision. The proposed subdivision would create two lots for future residential 

development with adequate street access, and utility connections to all lots.  There are no known 

easements that would conflict with the proposed subdivision.   
 

6. The City of Coachella has determined that the proposed project will not have significant 

environmental effects upon the environment pursuant to a Section 15183 CEQA analysis that was prepared 

for the project, and which tiers off of the City’s General Plan Update Environmental Impact Report.  As 

such, there are not additional mitigation measures required and no additional environmental reviews for the 

subdivision to be approved.  

 

Conditions: 

 

1. Tentative Parcel Map No. 37833 is approved for the Coachella Valley Apartments 

Project for a two-year period from the effective date unless an extension of time is requested by 

the applicant and granted by the Planning Commission.  A building permit and diligent pursuit of 

construction shall vest the conditional use permit. Violation of any of the conditions of approval 

shall be cause for revocation of the Conditional Use Permit. 
 

Final Map 

 

Page 101

Item 11.



Resolution No. 2020-17 

Page 3 
 

2. The Final Map shall be submitted to the City Engineering Department for plan 

check and final approval prior to recordation.  The final map shall comply with the Subdivision 

Map Act and City of Coachella Subdivision Ordinance. 

 

3. The applicant shall record an ingress-egress easement for the benefit of Parcel 1 of 

Tentative Parcel Map No. 37833.  Reciprocal access easements over all parcels shall be included 

as part of the final map over the future common-area driveways proposed for the Coachella Valley 

Apartments development. 

 

4. The subdivider shall dedicate any additional right-of-way as may be required for 

public streets fronting along the property.  

 

5. Prior to submittal of the final map to the City Council for approval, the applicant 

shall post securities (Bonds) to guarantee the installation of required improvements and a 

Subdivision Improvement Agreement shall be submitted to Engineering Division for City 

Engineer and City Attorney approval.   

 

PASSED, APPROVED and ADOPTED this 11th day of March 2020. 

 

 

______________________________ 

Steven A. Hernandez 

Mayor 

 

 

ATTEST: 
 

 

______________________________ 

Angela M. Zepeda 

City Clerk 

 

 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 

 

_____________________________ 

Carlos Campos 

City Attorney 

  

Page 102

Item 11.



Resolution No. 2020-17 

Page 4 
 

STATE OF CALIFORNIA   ) 

COUNTY OF RIVERSIDE   ) ss. 

CITY OF COACHELLA   ) 

 

 I HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing Resolution No. 2020-17 was duly adopted by 

the City Council of the City of Coachella at a regular meeting thereof, held on this 11th day of 

March 2020 by the following vote of the City Council: 

  

AYES:   

 

NOES:   

 

ABSENT:   

 

ABSTAIN:   

 

 

___________________________________ 

Andrea J. Carranza, MMC 

Deputy City Clerk  

 

Page 103

Item 11.



 

 
 
 
 

 
EXHIBIT A 

 

 
 
 

Page 104

Item 11.



 

 

 

 

 

 

CEQA Compliance 

Section 15183 Analysis 

for 

Coachella Valley Apartments 

Architectural Review (AR 19-10)  

Tentative Parcel Map No. 37833 

 

 

I. Introduction 

 

The applicant proposes the demolition of 50 existing dwelling units for the construction of a 110-unit 

affordable housing development on approximately 5.76 acres located at 84-900 Bagdad Avenue. The 

project is expected to develop in two phases and consists of a combination of two and three-story 

buildings and a centrally located community center building. The City of Coachella is processing an 

Architectural Review application and Tentative Tract Map for the project.  

 

This document analyzes the proposed project with respect to its compliance with the California 

Environmental Quality Act (CEQA), particularly CEQA Guidelines Section 15183, and in the context of 

consistency with the City of Coachella General Plan and its certified Environmental Impact Report. 

 

CEQA Requirements 

CEQA (Public Resources Code Section 21000 et. seq.) and the State CEQA Guidelines require that state 

and local government agencies evaluate and consider the potential environmental effects of projects over 

which they have discretionary authority. CEQA Guidelines Section 15183 allows for a streamlined 

environmental review process for projects which are consistent with the development density established 

by existing zoning, community plan, or general plan policies for which an Environmental Impact Report 

(EIR) was certified, except as might be necessary to examine whether there are project-specific 

significant effects which are peculiar to the project or its sites. 

 

If the above qualifications are met, as stated in Section 15183(b), “a public agency shall limit its 

examination of environmental effects to those which the agency determines, in an initial study or other 

analysis: 

 

(1) are peculiar to the project or the parcel on which the project would be located, 

(2) were not analyzed as significant effects in a prior EIR on the zoning action, general plan, or 

community plan, with which the project is consistent, 

(3) are potentially significant off-site impacts and cumulative impacts which were not discussed 

in the prior EIR prepared for the general plan, community plan or zoning action, or 

Page 105

Item 11.



Coachella Valley Apartments CEQA Section 15183 Analysis 

December 4, 2019 

 

 

 
2 

 

(4) are previously identified significant effects which, as a result of substantial new information 

which was not known at the time the EIR was certified, are determined to have a more severe 

adverse impact than discussed in the prior EIR.” 

 

This document has been prepared to satisfy the requirements of CEQA Guidelines Section 15183. It 

analyzes the potential environmental effects of the proposed project and evaluates whether they were 

adequately analyzed in a prior EIR such that the above-identified streamlining criteria apply. 

 

General Plan Update Program EIR 

The project is consistent with the Coachella General Plan Update 2035 (CGPU), for which an EIR (SCH 

#2009021007) was certified on April 22, 2015. The CGPU provides a framework for future growth of the 

City and projects the development reasonably expected to occur during the 20-year buildout period to 

2035. The CGPU EIR analyzed the environmental impacts associated with adoption and implementation 

of the General Plan Update. 

 

The proposed project is permitted in the zoning district where the project site is located and consistent 

with the land uses, density, and vision of the CGPU. According to the City’s Zoning Map, the project site 

is within the R-M zone (Residential Multiple Family), which allows for various medium and high 

population densities that are in conformance with the General Plan (Coachella Municipal Code, Chapter 

17.20). Under the CGPU, the project site is within the City’s “Urban Neighborhood” land use designation 

that provides high density, walkable, and transit-ready neighborhoods with a variety of housing types and 

supporting land uses such as retail, office, civic and recreational uses. (CGPU, p. 04-19). This designation 

allows a density of 20 to 38 dwelling units per acre and commercial floor to area ratio (FAR) of up to 0.5. 

Given the project’s consistency with the CGPU, the City is not required to examine environmental 

impacts that were already evaluated in the previously certified General Plan EIR. 

 

The CGPU EIR serves as the basis of the analysis contained herein, and the proposed project is evaluated 

for consistency with the intent of CGPU policies and conformance with development regulations. 

Information contained in the CGPU EIR is incorporated by reference, and mitigation measures that would 

apply to the proposed project are identified. 

 

2. Project Description 

 

Project Location 

The subject property is located at 84-900 Bagdad Avenue, approximately 0.1 miles west of Harrison 

Street (APNs 768-210-025 and -026). (Exhibits 1-4). 

 

Existing Conditions 

The site is currently occupied by a 50-unit, non-gated multi-family development and centrally located, 

communal open space (Coachella Valley Apartments). All buildings are single-story with on-site parking 

provided throughout the complex. Vehicular access is provided by independent driveways along Bagdad 

Avenue that serve the western and eastern sections of the complex. 

 

Page 106

Item 11.



Coachella Valley Apartments CEQA Section 15183 Analysis 

December 4, 2019 

 

 

 
3 

 

Land Use Designations 

The subject property is designated “Urban Neighborhood” in the General Plan and “Residential Multiple 

Family” (RM) on the Zoning Map. The project site is also located in “Subarea 1 – West Coachella 

Neighborhoods” of the General Plan, as shown in the CGPU’s Figure 4-24: General Plan Subarea Map. 

 

Surrounding Land Uses 

Surrounding land uses include the following: 

 

North: Las Flores Family Apartments, 

East: New Life Church Coachella and Plaza Tonala shopping center, 

South: Bagdad Avenue, 

West: Coachella Valley Apartment Homes 

 

Project Description 

The proposed project would result in demolition of existing on-site buildings and improvements and 

development of eight 3-story residential apartment buildings and one single-story 

administration/community building (Exhibit 5). The apartments would total 136,023± square feet, 

consisting of 110 one-, two-, and three-bedroom units with balconies. The community building would 

total 4,755± square feet and include office space, meeting rooms, a laundry room, a computer lab, and 

maintenance/storage areas. A total of 191 on-site parking spaces will be provided. Open space amenities 

include half-court basketball, playgrounds (tot lots), outdoor BBQ areas, and a splash pad. Site access will 

be provided by two driveways along Bagdad Avenue with internal driveways providing connections to all 

buildings.  

 

The existing apartments have been occupied for decades. At a density of 9 units per acre, the project is 

currently less dense than was envisioned in the General Plan’s Urban Neighborhood designation. The 

redevelopment of the site for 110 units, or 20 units per acre, is consistent with the City’s current vision for 

the site. 

 

Discretionary Actions  

The proposed Project would require approval of an Architectural Review application for site plan and 

exterior architecture and landscaping review, and a Tentative Parcel Map to allow a lot split. 

  

Page 107

Item 11.



Coachella Valley Apartments CEQA Section 15183 Analysis 

December 4, 2019 

 

 

 
4 

 

 

Exhibit 1 

Regional Location Map 

 

  

Page 108

Item 11.



Coachella Valley Apartments CEQA Section 15183 Analysis 

December 4, 2019 

 

 

 
5 

 

 

 

Exhibit 2 

Area Location 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 109

Item 11.



Coachella Valley Apartments CEQA Section 15183 Analysis 

December 4, 2019 

 

 

 
6 

 

 

Exhibit 3 

Project Vicinity 

 
  

Page 110

Item 11.



Coachella Valley Apartments CEQA Section 15183 Analysis 

December 4, 2019 

 

 

 
7 

 

Exhibit 4 

Project location 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 111

Item 11.



Coachella Valley Apartments CEQA Section 15183 Analysis 

December 4, 2019 

 

 

 
8 

 

 

Exhibit 5 

Project Site Plan 

 

  

Page 112

Item 11.



Coachella Valley Apartments CEQA Section 15183 Analysis 

December 4, 2019 

 

 

 
9 

 

 

3. Environmental Impacts Analysis 

 

INTRODUCTION 

The following analysis describes potential environmental impacts of the proposed project, findings of the 

CGPU EIR, and mitigation measures (if required) that are recommended as appropriate for the proposed 

project. 

 

AESTHETICS 

The proposed project site is designated “Urban Neighborhood” in the General Plan. The physical 

character of an “Urban Neighborhood” is defined by mid- to high-density residential mixed-uses, 

convenient pedestrian access, and high quality public open spaces and streetscapes to create a comfortable 

living environment for neighborhood residents (CGPU p. O4-19). Desired building types are 

“Rowhouse/Townhouse, Garden Apartment and Urban Apartment,” with buildings heights of two to three 

stories (CGPU p. O4-20). Main entrances should be located along the property street frontage and 

designed to welcome visitors.  

 

The Land Use and Community Character Element of the CGPU sets forth policies intended to preserve 

the City’s unique visual character, including preservation of the “small-town” identity, cultural diversity, 

and high quality construction and architecture (CGPU p. 4-85 and 4-86). The proposed project is 

consistent with the following CGPU policies: 

 

2.5  High quality construction and architecture. Require high-quality and long-lasting building 

materials on all new development projects in the City. Encourage innovative and quality 

architecture in the City with all new public and private projects. (Land Use and Community 

Character) 

 

6.1  View corridor preservation. Protect and preserve existing, signature views of the hills and 

mountains from the City. (Sustainability and Natural Environment) 

 

The proposed project would demolish and replace the existing single-story buildings with taller, three-

story buildings. Proposed architectural styles, colors, building heights, and site layout are consistent with 

the intent of the “Urban Neighborhood” designation and are compatible with the existing visual character 

of multi-family residential developments in the immediate vicinity and along Bagdad Avenue.  

 

Compared to existing site conditions, the proposed project would increase building heights and lot 

coverage, which could potentially increase light and glare. However, project lighting and glare levels 

would be compatible with the surrounding urban environment and reduced through compliance with 

Municipal Code requirements, such as the shielding of lighting fixtures to prevent spillage onto adjacent 

properties. 

 

In addition to light and glare, increased building heights could potentially impact views of scenic vistas 

enjoyed by surrounding properties. The most prominent scenic vista within the CGPU Planning Area is of 

Page 113

Item 11.



Coachella Valley Apartments CEQA Section 15183 Analysis 

December 4, 2019 

 

 

 
10 

 

the Mecca Hills, which are located to the east.  The CGPU sets forth policies within the Sustainability + 

Natural Environment Element that ensure existing and new development are designed to preserve view 

corridors. The project would not damage scenic resources or have a substantial adverse effect on a scenic 

vista because neither occur onsite or in the immediate vicinity. 

 

The proposed project is consistent with the “Urban Neighborhood” land use designation assigned by the 

CGPU and analyzed in the EIR. The EIR determined that development resulting from implementation of 

the General Plan would have no impact to scenic resources, and have less than significant impacts on 

scenic vistas, and light intrusion and glare. However, impacts to visual character would result in 

significant and unavoidable impacts due to the City’s expected high growth rates and development 

projections. No mitigation measures were required or provided in the EIR; however, the proposed project 

would be subject to the CGPU policies referenced above and the City’s standard design review process. 

 

Overall, the proposed project would not result in any new impacts or significant findings associated with 

aesthetics or increase the severity of impacts identified in the EIR. The impact was adequately addressed 

in the EIR and would not change from that identified in the EIR as a result of the proposed project.  

 

Determination:  

 There is nothing unusual or peculiar to the project or subject parcel that would change or affect 

the aesthetic impacts analyzed in the CGPU EIR. 

 Impacts of the proposed project on aesthetics were analyzed in the certified CGPU EIR 

because…. 

 There are no significant off-site or cumulative aesthetic impacts associated with the proposed 

project that were not addressed in the EIR because…. 

 There is no substantial new information indicating that the aesthetic impacts of the project would 

be more severe than those described in the EIR because…. 

 

AGRICULTURE AND FORESTRY RESOURCES 

Within the CGPU planning area, there are approximately 11,139 acres of agricultural lands, of which 994 

acres are currently under Williamson Act contract. The CGPU EIR determined that development resulting 

from implementation of the General Plan would result in significant and unavoidable impacts regarding 

the conversion of farmland to non-agricultural uses due to anticipated population growth.  

 

However, the subject property is designated “Urban Neighborhood” in the General Plan and is currently 

developed as such. Surrounding lands are also developed or designated for residential and or urban uses. 

There are no farmland zoning designations, Williamson Act contracts, forests, or forest zoning 

designations on site or in the project vicinity. The proposed project would not result in the loss or 

conversion of agricultural or forest land.  

 

The proposed project is consistent with the “Urban Neighborhood” land use designation and would not 

result in any new impacts or significant findings associated with agricultural or forestry resources or 

increase the severity of impacts identified in the EIR. The impact was adequately addressed in the EIR 

Page 114

Item 11.



Coachella Valley Apartments CEQA Section 15183 Analysis 

December 4, 2019 

 

 

 
11 

 

and would not change from that identified in the EIR as a result of the proposed project. No impact would 

occur and no additional mitigation measures are required. 

 

Determination:  

 There is nothing unusual or peculiar to the project or subject parcel that would change or affect 

the impacts to agriculture or forestry lands analyzed in the CGPU EIR, as the subject parcel is 

currently designated as “Urban Neighborhood” and will continue to be developed with multi-

family uses. 

 Impacts of the proposed project on agriculture and forestry resources were analyzed in the 

certified CGPU EIR. 

 There are no significant off-site or cumulative agriculture or forestry impacts associated with the 

proposed project that were not addressed in the EIR, as the project involves redevelopment of a 

developed urban site with the same, multi-family, residential use at a density consistent with that 

analyzed in the CGPU EIR. 

 There is no substantial new information indicating that the agriculture or forestry impacts of the 

project would be more severe than those described in the EIR. 

 

AIR QUALITY 

According to the CGPU, the City’s population is intended to grow to a maximum of 135,000 by 2035. By 

contrast, SCAG’s 2012 Regional Transportation Plan (RTP)/Sustainable Community Strategies (SCS) 

forecasts that the City will have a population of only 128,700 in 2035. Thus, the CGPU anticipates a 

maximum of 6,300 more residents than does the 2012 RCP/SCS by this time horizon, or approximately 

4.9% more growth (CGPU EIR, p. 4.11-13). However, the CGPU EIR determined that the theoretical 

buildout of land use designations likely overstates the amount of growth likely to occur, and is therefore 

generally consistent with RTP/SCS. The proposed project is consistent with this trend because it does not 

propose the maximum density allowed for the site. Further, the proposed project is consistent with the 

following CGPU policies: 

 

14.1  Sustainable development leadership. Establish the City as a regional leader in sustainable 

development and encourage compact, higher-density development that conserves land resources, 

protects habitat, supports transit, reduces vehicle trips, improves air quality, conserves energy and 

water and diversifies the housing stock in the Coachella Valley. (Land Use and Community 

Character) 

 

11.2  Land use patterns. Promote compact, mixed-use, energy efficient and transit oriented 

development to reduce air pollutants associated energy and vehicular use. (Sustainability and 

Natural Environment) 

 

11.12  Indoor air quality. Require new development to meet the state’s Green Building Code for indoor 

air quality performance. (Sustainability and Natural Environment) 

 

Page 115

Item 11.



Coachella Valley Apartments CEQA Section 15183 Analysis 

December 4, 2019 

 

 

 
12 

 

11.13  Healthy homes. Promote green building practices that support “healthy homes,” such as low VOC 

materials, environmental tobacco smoke control, and indoor air quality construction pollution 

prevention techniques. 

 

The CGPU EIR analyzed both short-term and long-term air quality emission impacts associated with 

buildout of the General Plan on a programmatic level. 

 

 

Long-Term Impacts 

 

The South Coast Air Quality Management District (SCAQMD) is the air pollution control agency for the 

Coachella Valley, including the City of Coachella. Under state law, the SCAQMD is required to prepare 

an overall plan for air quality improvement, known as the Air Quality Management Plan (AQMP), for the 

South Coast Air Basin and the Riverside County portion of the Salton Sea Air Basin, for which the 

project is located. Projects that are consistent with the projections of employment and population 

forecasts identified in the Regional Comprehensive Plan (RCP) prepared by the Southern California 

Association of Governments (SCAG) are considered consistent with the AQMP growth projections, since 

the RCP forms the basis of the land use and transportation control portions of the AQMP. 

 

In addition, buildout of the General Plan would not conflict with applicable air quality plans due to 

numerous policies provided in the Land Use + Community Character Element, Mobility Element, and 

Sustainability + Natural Environment Element, which are consistent with the intent of the California Air 

Resources Board (ARB) Air Quality and Land Use Handbook. The proposed project is consistent with the 

intent and buildout of the General Plan, and therefore would not conflict with applicable air quality plans. 

 

Short-Term Impacts 

The EIR determined that construction-related emission impacts would be less than significant due to 

applicable CGPU policies (Sustainability + Natural Environment Element) and SCAMD rules regarding 

construction activities and sensitive receptors. Applicable state and local standards regarding construction 

would be applied during development of the proposed project, ensuring short-term impacts are less than 

significant. 

 

Existing vs. Proposed Development 

The existing 50-unit multi-family development is equal to a land use density of 9 units per acre. The 

proposed 110 residential units will increase the site’s land use density to 20 units per acre. The CGPU 

EIR analyzed maximum potential buildout emissions, meaning the project site was analyzed for 38 units 

per acre. Although the proposed project will result in an increased land use density compared to existing 

conditions, the project would emit fewer emissions than the maximum density analyzed under the CGPU 

EIR. Therefore, the proposed project would result in less than significant impacts and no new mitigation 

measures are required with compliance of existing CGPU policies and SCAQMD regulations. 

 

Page 116

Item 11.



Coachella Valley Apartments CEQA Section 15183 Analysis 

December 4, 2019 

 

 

 
13 

 

Hotspots 

Although CO is not expected to be a major air quality concern in the Coachella Valley in the near future, 

elevated CO levels can occur at or near intersections that experience severe traffic congestion. The CGPU 

EIR found that buildout of the General Plan could potentially have a significant impact on air quality 

standards, specifically CO hotspots, if increased traffic at certain intersections were not alleviated. Based 

on analysis of the traffic study prepared for the CGPU EIR, impacts related to CO hotspots would be 

reduced to less than significant levels with implementation of mitigation measures set forth in EIR 

Section 4.8 Circulation, which are designed to provide additional capacity at intersections operating at 

LOS E or F. No new mitigation is required for the proposed project. 

 

The proposed project is consistent with the “Urban Neighborhood” land use designation assigned by the 

CGPU and analyzed in the EIR. The EIR determined that development resulting from implementation of 

the General Plan would result in less than significant impacts to air quality with mitigation, and 

cumulative impacts would be less than significant. The proposed project would not result in any new 

impacts or significant findings or increase the severity of impacts identified in the CGPU EIR. The impact 

was adequately addressed in the EIR and would not change from that identified in the EIR. 

 

Determination:  

 There is nothing unusual or peculiar to the project or subject parcel that would change or affect 

the air quality impacts analyzed in the CGPU EIR.  Uniformly applied development policies, 

including construction policies, will apply to the project and the project would not increase air 

quality impacts analyzed in the CGPU EIR. 

 Impacts of the proposed project on air quality resources were analyzed in the certified CGPU 

EIR, as the project is less dense than that analyzed in the CGPU EIR. 

 There are no significant off-site or cumulative air quality impacts associated with the proposed 

project that were not addressed in the EIR because…. 

 There is no substantial new information indicating that air quality impacts of the project would be 

more severe than those described in the EIR. 

 

BIOLOGICAL RESOURCES 

The subject site is located in an urbanized area and is currently developed with 50 multi-family residential 

units. The project site is located within the boundaries of the Coachella Valley Multiple Species Habitat 

Conservation Plan (CV MSHCP) but is not within or in the vicinity of a Conservation Area, as defined by 

the Plan. 

 

The site is currently developed and does not contain sensitive species populations, habitat capable of 

supporting sensitive species, riparian habitat, federally protected wetlands, migratory wildlife corridors, 

or wildlife nursery sites. As such, the proposed project would not result in habitat modifications affecting 

sensitive species, interfere with the movement of native wildlife species, or conflict with local policies or 

ordinances protecting wildlife species. It should be noted that the CGPU EIR required mitigation 

measures for sensitive species for projects proposing development within subareas 5, 6, and 7 of the 

General Plan (CGPU EIR, p. 4.3-26). The proposed project is located within subarea 1, will not disturb 

vacant land, and will therefore have no impact on sensitive species. 

Page 117

Item 11.



Coachella Valley Apartments CEQA Section 15183 Analysis 

December 4, 2019 

 

 

 
14 

 

 

The proposed project is consistent with the “Urban Neighborhood” land use designation assigned by the 

CGPU and analyzed in the EIR. The EIR determined that development resulting from implementation of 

the General Plan would result in less than significant impacts to biological species, and local policies or 

ordinances protecting biological resources. The project would not result in any new impacts or significant 

findings or increase the severity of impacts identified in the CGPU EIR. The impact was adequately 

addressed in the EIR and would not change from that identified in the EIR. 

 

Determination: 

 There is nothing unusual or peculiar to the project or subject parcel that would change or affect 

the impacts to biological resources analyzed in the CGPU EIR. 

 Impacts of the proposed project on biological resources were analyzed in the certified CGPU 

EIR. 

 There are no significant off-site or cumulative biological resource impacts associated with the 

proposed project that were not addressed in the EIR. 

 There is no substantial new information indicating that biological resource impacts of the project 

would be more severe than those described in the EIR. 

 

CULTURAL RESOURCES 

The subject property has been developed for many years as a 50-unit multi-family residential 

development. The site has been previously disturbed by grading, excavation, construction, and paving. 

 

The CGPU EIR determined that development of the site resulting from implementation of the General 

Plan would result in less than significant impacts to historical resources, archaeological resources, 

paleontological resources, tribal cultural resources, and cumulative impacts; however, it could result in 

potentially significant impacts on human remains (CGPU EIR p. 4.4-21 through 4.4-23). The following 

CGPU policy was added to Chapter 7 as a Mitigation Measure to ensure potential impacts to human 

remains were avoided or reduced: 

 

In areas where there is a high chance that human remains may be present, require 

proposed projects to conduct surveys to establish occurrence of human remains, if any. If 

human remains are discovered on proposed project sites, the project must implement 

mitigation measures to prevent impacts to human remains in order to receive permit 

approval.   

 

No other mitigation measures were required to assure that impacts associated with cultural resources 

remain less than significant. The proposed project is consistent with the following CPGU policies: 

 

10.4  Mitigation and preservation of cultural resources. Require development to avoid archaeological 

and paleontological resources, whenever possible. If complete avoidance is not possible, require 

development to minimize and fully mitigate the impacts to the resources. 

 

Page 118

Item 11.



Coachella Valley Apartments CEQA Section 15183 Analysis 

December 4, 2019 

 

 

 
15 

 

10.5  Grading. Require that proposed projects that involve a significant amount of grading shall have 

an archaeological and paleontological survey conducted before construction. 

 

The EIR determined that, with mitigation, potentially significant impacts to human remains would be 

reduced to a less than significant level. Because the proposed project would occur on a previously 

disturbed/developed site, no impacts to cultural resources are anticipated. Demolition of the existing 

project, and construction of the proposed project, would result in grading and excavation for the new 

foundations required for the project’s buildings. 

 

The proposed project is consistent with the “Urban Neighborhood” land use designation assigned by the 

CGPU and analyzed in the EIR. The proposed project would not result in any new impacts or significant 

findings or increase the severity of impacts identified in the CGPU EIR. The impact was adequately 

addressed in the EIR and would not change from that identified in the EIR. 

 

Determination:  

 There is nothing unusual or peculiar to the project or subject parcel that would change or affect 

the impacts to cultural resources analyzed in the CGPU EIR. 

 Impacts of the proposed project on cultural resources were analyzed in the certified CGPU EIR. 

 There are no significant off-site or cumulative cultural resource impacts associated with the 

proposed project that were not addressed in the EIR. 

 There is no substantial new information indicating that cultural resource impacts of the project 

would be more severe than those described in the EIR. 

 

ENERGY 

The proposed project would demolish the existing 50-unit multi-family residential development on the 

site and replace it with a 110-unit multi-family residential development. The proposed land use would 

consume electricity and natural gas for daily operations, including heating, cooling, ventilation, cooking, 

and lighting. The project would also result in the consumption of transportation fuels by vehicles and 

equipment during the two construction phase and vehicles accessing the site over the long-term. New 

structures would be required to comply with Title 24 Building Energy Efficiency Standards which address 

efficiency of buildings, appliances, insulation and roofing, lighting, and water and space heating and 

cooling equipment. The project would not have excessive energy requirements or result in the wasteful or 

inefficient use of finite energy resources. 

 

The proposed project is consistent with the “Urban Neighborhood” land use designation assigned by the 

CGPU and analyzed in the EIR. The proposed project is consistent with the following CGPU 

Sustainability and Natural Environment Element policies: 

 

2.6  Energy performance targets – new construction. Require new construction to exceed Title 24 

energy efficiency standards by 15 percent and incorporate solar photovoltaics. 

 

11.2  Land use patterns. Promote compact, mixed-use, energy efficient and transit-oriented 

development to reduce air pollutants associated energy and vehicular use. 

Page 119

Item 11.



Coachella Valley Apartments CEQA Section 15183 Analysis 

December 4, 2019 

 

 

 
16 

 

 

The EIR determined that development resulting from implementation of the General Plan would result in 

less than significant impacts associated with energy consumption. No mitigation measures were required 

or provided. The proposed project would not result in any new impacts or significant findings or increase 

the severity of impacts identified in the CGPU EIR. The impact was adequately addressed in the EIR and 

would not change from that identified in the EIR. 

 

Determination:  

 There is nothing unusual or peculiar to the project or subject parcel that would change or affect 

the energy impacts analyzed in the CGPU EIR. 

 Impacts of the proposed project on energy resources were analyzed in the certified CGPU EIR. 

 There are no significant off-site or cumulative energy impacts associated with the proposed 

project that were not addressed in the EIR. 

 There is no substantial new information indicating that energy impacts of the project would be 

more severe than those described in the EIR. 

 

GEOLOGY AND SOILS 

The proposed site is located in a seismically active region. However, no active faults or Alquist-Priolo 

Earthquake Fault Zones traverse the site, and no ground rupture would occur onsite. Construction 

regulations and guidelines are currently in place for new structures, to prevent collapse from ground 

shaking, subsidence, lateral spreading and liquefaction. These regulations ensure that structures are built 

with proper reinforcement to a level and engineering standard that is most recent, to prevent structure 

failure. Demolition and construction activities would be required to comply with City storm management 

discharge requirements and a stormwater pollution prevention plan (SWPPP), as necessary, to minimize 

erosion impacts. 

 

The proposed project is consistent with the “Urban Neighborhood” land use designation assigned by the 

CGPU and analyzed in the EIR.  The EIR determined that development resulting from implementation of 

the General Plan would result in less than significant impacts associated with geology and soils. No 

mitigation measures were required or provided. The proposed project would not result in any new impacts 

or significant findings or increase the severity of impacts identified in the CGPU EIR. The impact was 

adequately addressed in the EIR and would not change from that identified in the EIR as a result of the 

proposed project. 

 

Determination:  

 There is nothing unusual or peculiar to the project or subject site that would change or affect the 

impacts associated with geology or soils analyzed in the CGPU EIR. 

 Impacts of the proposed project on geology and soils were analyzed in the certified CGPU EIR. 

 There are no significant off-site or cumulative geology/soils impacts associated with the proposed 

project that were not addressed in the EIR. 

 There is no substantial new information indicating that geology/soils impacts of the project would 

be more severe than those described in the EIR. 

 

Page 120

Item 11.



Coachella Valley Apartments CEQA Section 15183 Analysis 

December 4, 2019 

 

 

 
17 

 

GREENHOUSE GAS EMISSIONS 

Buildout of the CGPU would generate new GHG emissions, directly and indirectly. According to the 

CGPU EIR, implementation of the City’s Climate Action Plan (CAP) would result in an annual per 

service population emissions value of 6.2 MT CO2E in 2020, which is below the SCAQMD 

recommended threshold of 6.6 MT CO2E per service population per year.  

 

The City of Coachella has set a more stringent target of 49% below 2010 per service population emissions 

by 2035, or 4.2 MT CO2E per service population per year. The EIR determined that buildout of the 

General Plan would result in 5.4 MT CO2E per service population per year, which exceeds the City’s 

reduction target. The EIR set forth a mitigation measure requiring the implementation of additional CAP 

reduction measures to ensure the City’s reduction target is met by 2035 (CGPU EIR, p. 4.12-15). Impacts 

were found to be less than significant after mitigation. 

 

The proposed project will result in an increased land use density compared to existing conditions; 

however, the project would emit fewer emissions than the maximum density analyzed under the CGPU 

EIR. Therefore, the proposed project would result in less than significant impacts and no new mitigation 

measures are required with compliance of existing CGPU policies and mitigation measures, including: 

 

1.6  Climate-appropriate building types. Seek out and promote alternative building types that are more 

sensitive to the arid environment found in the Coachella Valley. Courtyard housing and 

commercial buildings can be designed to provide microclimates that are usable year round, 

reducing the need for mechanically cooled spaces and reducing energy consumption. 

(Sustainability and Natural Environment) 

 

2.2  Passive solar design. Require new buildings to incorporate energy efficient building and site 

design strategies for the desert environment that include appropriate solar orientation, thermal 

mass, use of natural daylight and ventilation, and shading. (Sustainability and Natural 

Environment) 

 

4.4  Reducing GHG emissions. In consulting with applicants and designing new facilities, prioritize 

the selection of green building design features that enhance the reduction of greenhouse gas 

emissions. (Sustainability and Natural Environment) 

 

The proposed project is consistent with the “Urban Neighborhood” land use designation assigned by the 

CGPU and analyzed in the EIR. The EIR determined that development associated with implementation of 

the General Plan would not conflict with an applicable plan, policy or regulation adopted for the purpose 

of reducing the emission of GHGs after mitigation. The proposed project would not result in any new 

impacts or significant findings or increase the severity of impacts identified in the CGPU EIR. The impact 

was adequately addressed in the General Plan EIR and would not change from that identified in the EIR. 

 

Determination:  

 There is nothing unusual or peculiar to the project or subject parcels that would change or affect 

the impacts to greenhouse gas emissions analyzed in the CGPU EIR. 

Page 121

Item 11.



Coachella Valley Apartments CEQA Section 15183 Analysis 

December 4, 2019 

 

 

 
18 

 

 Impacts of the proposed project on greenhouse gas emissions were analyzed in the certified 

CGPU EIR. 

 There are no significant off-site or cumulative greenhouse gas emission impacts associated with 

the proposed project that were not addressed in the EIR. 

 There is no substantial new information indicating that greenhouse gas impacts of the project 

would be more severe than those described in the EIR. 

 

HAZARDS AND HAZARDOUS MATERIALS 

Demolition of the existing units has the potential to result in the release of hazardous materials, as the 

project was built prior to the prohibition of asbestos use in building materials. According to the Phase 1 

Environmental Site Assessment (ESA) prepared for the proposed project, the potential for asbestos to 

occur in the existing building exists (see Appendix A). Existing regulations and policies regarding 

hazardous materials are designed to help reduce future potential risk and environmental impacts to a 

minimum by requiring safe transport, use, and disposal of hazardous waste. The proposed project will be 

subject to these regulations, as are all projects which were built prior to 1976, and demolition of the 

existing buildings will require appropriate investigation and remediation, as required in the Phase 1 ESA. 

The implementation of this standard requirement will assure that impacts are no greater than those 

analyzed in the CGPU EIR. 

 

Similar to the existing on-site conditions, the proposed project would require the transport, use, storage, 

and disposal of limited quantities and types of hazardous materials typically used in residential 

developments, such as solvents and cleaners. The subject site is not included on a list of hazardous 

materials sites, and proposed land uses would not generate a significant public hazard involving the 

release of hazardous materials. The site is not located within an airport land use compatibility plan, and 

the project would not create an associated safety hazard to people residing or working in the project area. 

Temporary construction traffic plans would be approved by and coordinated with the City and Police and 

Fire Departments to assure that the project would not physically interfere with emergency response plans.  

 

The proposed project is consistent with the following Safety Element policies of the CGPU: 

 

5.10  Household hazardous waste collection. Increase awareness in the community about proper 

disposal/collection of leftover household products, especially those that contain corrosive, toxic, 

ignitable, or reactive ingredients that are considered to be "household hazardous waste.” Require 

special care for disposal or collection of products, such as paints, cleaners, oils, batteries and 

pesticides that contain potentially hazardous ingredients. 

 

5.11  Hazardous materials disposal. Continue to support the operation of programs and recycling 

centers that accept hazardous substances, such as paint, paint thinner used waste oil, etc., such as 

the City’s Drop-Off facility. 

 

The proposed project is consistent with the “Urban Neighborhood” land use designation assigned by the 

CGPU and analyzed in the EIR. The EIR determined that development resulting from implementation of 

the General Plan would result in less than significant impacts associated with hazards and hazardous 

Page 122

Item 11.



Coachella Valley Apartments CEQA Section 15183 Analysis 

December 4, 2019 

 

 

 
19 

 

materials. No mitigation measures were required or provided. The proposed project would not result in 

any new impacts or significant findings or increase the severity of impacts identified in the CGPU EIR. 

The impact was adequately addressed in the EIR and would not change from that identified in the EIR. 

 

Determination:  

 There is nothing unusual or peculiar to the project or subject parcel that would change or affect 

the hazardous materials impacts analyzed in the CGPU EIR, as standard requirements requiring 

safe transport, use, and disposal of hazardous waste would reduce any impact related to potential 

asbestos containing material on site. 

 Impacts of the proposed project on hazards and hazardous materials were analyzed in the certified 

CGPU EIR. 

 There are no significant off-site or cumulative hazardous materials impacts associated with the 

proposed project that were not addressed in the EIR. 

 There is no substantial new information indicating that hazardous materials impacts of the project 

would be more severe than those described in the EIR. 

 

HYDROLOGY AND WATER QUALITY 

The City currently enforces Federal, state, and local water quality regulations to monitor water quality 

and prevent degradation of water quality from various activities. The site is currently developed, and the 

project would not change drainage patterns such that substantial siltation, erosion, or flooding would 

occur. Two underground retention basins are proposed as part of the project to further reduce potential 

impacts from flooding and contain storm flows on-site.  

 

The project is consistent with the following Sustainability and Natural Environment Element policies: 

 

7.1  Pollution prevention. Limit the amount and concentration of pollutants released into the City’s 

waterways. 

 

7.4  Water quality. Ensure water quality in the City’s waterways meets applicable state and federal 

standards. 

 

Impacts from demolition, grading, and other construction activities would be temporary and minimized 

through adherence to a project-specific stormwater pollution prevention plan (SWPPP) and best 

management practices (BMP). The subject property is in “Zone X: Areas with Reduced Flood Risk Due 

to Levee” on Flood Insurance Rate Maps (FIRM) prepared by the Federal Emergency Management 

Agency (FEMA), and as such, the project would not expose people or structures to a significant risk 

associated with flooding. 

 

The City’s ground water supply comes from the Whitewater River Basin, specifically, the East (Lower) 

Whitewater River Subbasin. The Lower Whitewater River Basin is regionally managed by the Coachella 

Valley Water District (CVWD) who has statutory authority to replenish and assess local groundwater 

supplies per County Water District Law (CGPU p. 4.16-44). According to the CGPU, the Lower 

Whitewater River Basin currently meets demands of the General Plan buildout. In addition to water 

Page 123

Item 11.



Coachella Valley Apartments CEQA Section 15183 Analysis 

December 4, 2019 

 

 

 
20 

 

districts’ regional management efforts, the CGPU provides numerous policies addressing water supply 

and conservation (See CGPU EIR, p. 4.7-18 through -21). Therefore, impacts to groundwater supplies at 

CGPU buildout were determined to be less than significant.  

 

The proposed project is consistent with the “Urban Neighborhood” land use designation assigned by the 

CGPU and analyzed in the EIR. The EIR determined that development resulting from implementation of 

the General Plan would result in less than significant impacts associated with hydrology and water 

quality. No mitigation measures were required or provided. The proposed project would not result in any 

new impacts or significant findings or increase the severity of impacts identified in the CGPU EIR. The 

impact was adequately addressed in the EIR and would not change from that identified in the EIR. 

 

Determination:  

 There is nothing unusual or peculiar to the project or subject parcel that would change or affect 

the impacts to hydrology or water quality analyzed in the CGPU EIR. 

 Impacts of the proposed project on hydrology and water quality were analyzed in the certified 

CGPU EIR. 

 There are no significant off-site or cumulative hydrology impacts associated with the proposed 

project that were not addressed in the EIR. 

 There is no substantial new information indicating that hydrology impacts of the project would be 

more severe than those described in the EIR. 

 

LAND USE AND PLANNING 

The proposed project would demolish and replace an existing 50-unit multi-family development with a 

new 110-unit multi-family development. The project would be compatible with surrounding land uses and 

would not physically divide an established community or result in physical features that constitute a 

barrier through the community.  

 

The proposed project is consistent with the “Urban Neighborhood” land use designation assigned by the 

CGPU and analyzed in the EIR, which allows 20 to 38 dwelling units per acre. The project site is also 

located in “Subarea 1 – West Coachella Neighborhoods” as shown on the General Plan Subareas Map 

(CGPU Figure 4-24). The “vision” for Subarea 1 is to encourage improvements to existing neighborhoods 

and connectivity to adjacent areas. The proposed project is consistent with this vision and the following 

Subarea 1 policies: 

 

1. Encourage the infill of vacant and underutilized parcels with neighborhood patterns that support 

walkability, exemplify great urban neighborhoods as described by the General Plan designations and 

expand the range of housing available. 

2. Retrofit existing neighborhoods with a variety of improvements including improved connections to 

adjacent neighborhoods and commercial districts, pedestrian-friendly streets, parks and open spaces. 

5. Encourage and facilitate the development of new parks and related recreational opportunities. 

 

The subject site is within the boundaries of the Coachella Valley Multiple Species Habitat Conservation 

Plan; the project would not conflict with the plan insofar as the site is fully disturbed. 

Page 124

Item 11.



Coachella Valley Apartments CEQA Section 15183 Analysis 

December 4, 2019 

 

 

 
21 

 

 

The EIR determined that development resulting from implementation of the General Plan would result in 

less than significant land use impacts. No mitigation measures were required or provided. The project 

would not result in any new impacts or significant findings or increase the severity of impacts identified 

in the CGPU EIR. The impact was adequately addressed in the EIR and would not change from that 

identified in the EIR. 

 

Determination:  

 There is nothing unusual or peculiar to the project or subject parcels that would change or affect 

the land use impacts analyzed in the CGPU EIR. 

 Impacts of the proposed project on land use were analyzed in the certified CGPU EIR. 

 There are no significant off-site or cumulative land use impacts associated with the proposed 

project that were not addressed in the EIR. 

 There is no substantial new information indicating that land use impacts of the project would be 

more severe than those described in the EIR. 

 

MINERAL RESOURCES 

The proposed project site is currently developed for multi-family residential and is located in an 

urbanized area. The site is located within Mineral Resource Zone-1 based on USGS mapping, which is 

defined as an “area where adequate geologic information indicates that no significant mineral deposits are 

present, or where it is judged that little likelihood exists for their presence” (CGPU EIR p.4.5-18, Figure 

4.5-9: Mineral Resources). The proposed project would not result in the loss of availability of a known or 

locally important mineral resource. 

 

The proposed project is consistent with the “Urban Neighborhood” land use designation assigned by the 

CGPU and analyzed in the EIR. The EIR determined that development resulting from implementation of 

the CGPU would result in less than significant impacts to mineral resources, since the site is currently 

urbanized and does not provide for mineral resource extraction. No mitigation measures were required or 

provided. The proposed project would not result in any new impacts or significant findings or increase the 

severity of impacts identified in the CGPU EIR. The impact was adequately addressed in the EIR and 

would not change from that identified in the EIR. 

 

Determination:  

 There is nothing unusual or peculiar to the project or subject parcels that would change or affect 

the impacts to mineral resources analyzed in the CGPU EIR. 

 Impacts of the proposed project on mineral resources were analyzed in the certified CGPU EIR. 

 There are no significant off-site or cumulative mineral resource impacts associated with the 

proposed project that were not addressed in the EIR. 

 There is no substantial new information indicating that mineral resource impacts of the project 

would be more severe than those described in the EIR. 

 

NOISE 

Page 125

Item 11.



Coachella Valley Apartments CEQA Section 15183 Analysis 

December 4, 2019 

 

 

 
22 

 

Automobile traffic is the most significant source of noise in the City. According to the CGPU EIR, 

locations that would be exposed to the greatest noise levels are those located in proximity to high volume 

roadways, such as I-10, SR 86S, Dillion Road, and some segments of Grapefruit Boulevard and Avenue 

52. The proposed project is not located within proximity to these roadways. In addition, proposed 

building and site design would shield residents (sensitive receptors) from intrusive noise levels via 

setbacks and noise barriers such as landscaping and walls. Temporary impacts from construction, 

including groundborne noise and vibration, are currently regulated by Section 7.04.070 of the Coachella 

Municipal Code (CMC) provided that such activities take place during the appropriate daytime hours. 

 

The proposed project is consistent with the following Noise Element policies of the CGPU: 

 

1.2  Noise Analysis and Mitigation. Require projects involving new development or modifications to 

existing development to implement mitigation measures, where necessary, to reduce noise levels 

to at least the normally compatible range shown in the City’s Land Use/Noise Compatibility 

Matrix in Figure 10-1. Mitigation measures should focus on architectural features, building 

design and construction, rather than site design features such as excessive setbacks, berms and 

sound walls, to maintain compatibility with adjacent and surrounding uses. 

 

1.6  Land Use and Community Design. Except in cases where noise levels are in the clearly 

incompatible range as shown in the City’s Land Use/Noise Compatibility Matrix shown in Figure 

10-1, prioritize the building design and character policies in the Land Use and Community 

Design Element over those in the Noise Element to ensure that new development meets the 

design vision of the City. 

 

2.2  Noise Control. Minimize stationary noise impacts on sensitive receptors and noise emanating 

from construction activities, private developments/residences, landscaping activities, night clubs 

and bars and special events. 

 

The proposed project is consistent with the “Urban Neighborhood” land use designation assigned by the 

CGPU and analyzed in the EIR. The EIR determined that development resulting from implementation of 

the CGPU would result in noise impacts that are less than significant with adherence to applicable 

policies set forth in the CGPU. The proposed project would not result in any new impacts or significant 

findings or increase the severity of impacts identified in the CGPU EIR. The impact was adequately 

addressed in the EIR and would not change from that identified in the EIR. 

 

Determination:  

 There is nothing unusual or peculiar to the project or subject parcels that would change or affect 

the noise impacts analyzed in the CGPU EIR. 

 Impacts of the proposed project on noise were analyzed in the certified CGPU EIR. 

 There are no significant off-site or cumulative noise impacts associated with the proposed project 

that were not addressed in the EIR. 

 There is no substantial new information indicating that noise impacts of the project would be 

more severe than those described in the EIR. 

Page 126

Item 11.



Coachella Valley Apartments CEQA Section 15183 Analysis 

December 4, 2019 

 

 

 
23 

 

 

POPULATION AND HOUSING 

According to the EIR, the CGPU Planning Area is expected to grow to a total population of 135,000, by 

2035. The proposed project would result in the development of 110 multi-family dwelling units. Based on 

the City average of 4.79 persons per household
1
, it could generate a population of approximately 527 

residents, which constitutes ±0.4% of the Planning Area’s population projection for Coachella. The 

proposed project in and of itself would provide housing for this population, and therefore impacts would 

be less than significant. 

 

The project could result in the temporary displacement of people and housing during demolition of the 

existing development and construction of the new development. However, the applicant is required by 

State law to relocate displaced low income households, and project buildout would increase the housing 

supply by 60 units, thus resulting in less than significant impacts.  

 

The project would occur on a site that has been previously developed and, therefore, would not require 

the extension of roads, utilities, or other infrastructure that could induce population growth. 

 

The proposed project will provide 110 units of affordable housing, 60 of which will be new units, and 50 

of which will be replacement units. The project is consistent with the following Housing Element 

policies: 

 

1.6  Services and Facilities. Require that adequate public and private services and facilities are or will 

be provided to all new residential developments as a prerequisite for their approval. 

 

3.1  Conservation Techniques. Encourage the use of energy-conserving techniques in the siting and 

design of new housing. 

 

6.7  New Assisted Units. Promote the construction of new assisted housing units in the city for lower-

income households, including those with extremely low income. 

 

7.2  Preservation Cooperation. Work closely with nonprofit organizations and public agencies 

involved in the provision of affordable housing to preserve existing lower-income rental units in 

the city. 

 

The proposed project would not result in any new impacts or significant findings or increase the severity 

of impacts identified in the CGPU EIR. The EIR determined that development resulting from 

implementation of the CGPU would result in less than significant impacts to population and housing. No 

mitigation measures were required or provided. The proposed project would not result in any new impacts 

or significant findings or increase the severity of impacts identified in the CGPU EIR. The impact was 

adequately addressed in the EIR and would not change from that identified in the EIR. 

 

                                                           
1
  Report E-5: Population and Housing Estimates for Cities, Counties, and the State 2019, California Department of 

Finance. Released May 1, 2019. 

Page 127

Item 11.



Coachella Valley Apartments CEQA Section 15183 Analysis 

December 4, 2019 

 

 

 
24 

 

Determination:  

 There is nothing unusual or peculiar to the project or subject parcels that would change or affect 

the impacts to housing analyzed in the CGPU EIR. 

 Impacts of the proposed project on population and housing were analyzed in the certified CGPU 

EIR. 

 There are no significant off-site or cumulative population/housing impacts associated with the 

proposed project that were not addressed in the EIR. 

 There is no substantial new information indicating that population/housing impacts of the project 

would be more severe than those described in the EIR. 

 

 

PUBLIC SERVICES 

The project will demolish the existing 50-unit multi-family residential development and develop 110 new 

multi-family residential units, thus marginally increasing the existing population on-site. The CGPU EIR 

analyzed the population increase within the Planning Area, and the development of fire and law 

protection facilities, school facilities, parks and recreation, medical facilities, and library facilities is 

proposed to continue to meet growing demands and maintain recommended levels of service. 

 

The proposed project would not result in any new impacts or significant findings or increase the severity 

of impacts identified in the CGPU EIR. The EIR determined that development resulting from 

implementation of the CGPU would result in less than significant impacts to fire protection, law 

enforcement services, school facilities, parks and recreation, medical facilities, and library facilities. No 

mitigation measures were required or provided. The proposed project would not result in any new impacts 

or significant findings or increase the severity of impacts identified in the CGPU EIR. The impact was 

adequately addressed in the EIR and would not change from that identified in the EIR.  

 

Determination:  

 There is nothing unusual or peculiar to the project or subject parcels that would change or affect 

the public service impacts analyzed in the CGPU EIR. 

 Impacts of the proposed project on public services were analyzed in the certified CGPU EIR. 

 There are no significant off-site or cumulative public services impacts associated with the 

proposed project that were not addressed in the EIR. 

 There is no substantial new information indicating that public services impacts of the project 

would be more severe than those described in the EIR. 

 

RECREATION 

The proposed project would result in additional population which would increase the demand for parks 

and recreational services and facilities. Its estimated buildout population of 527 residents (see Population 

and Housing, above) is limited compared to the projected buildout population of the CGPU planning area, 

and impacts to recreational resources would be less than significant. The project proposes an onsite 

basketball court, playgrounds, open space areas, and a splash pad that would provide recreational 

opportunities for residents, further reducing impacts to recreation facilities. The proposed project is 

consistent with the following Sustainability and Natural Environment Element policies: 

Page 128

Item 11.



Coachella Valley Apartments CEQA Section 15183 Analysis 

December 4, 2019 

 

 

 
25 

 

 

13.7  Recreation centers. Locate more public and private health clubs and recreation centers in 

Coachella in partnership with the Desert Recreation District, community based organizations and 

private businesses. Explore regulatory or financial incentives in the zoning code and development 

approval process to encourage the location of private/non-profit recreation facilities (e.g., gyms, 

yoga or dance studios, martial arts, etc.). 

 

13.8  Diverse recreation programs. Ensure that recreation programs are affordable and meet the diverse 

needs in the community for users such as seniors, youth, non- English speaking groups and 

special needs groups. 

 

The proposed project is consistent with the “Urban Neighborhood” land use designation assigned by the 

CGPU and evaluated in the EIR. The EIR determined that development resulting from implementation of 

the CGPU would result in less than significant impacts to recreational services and facilities. No 

mitigation measures were required or provided. The proposed project would not result in any new impacts 

or significant findings or increase the severity of impacts identified in the CGPU EIR. The impact was 

adequately addressed in the EIR and would not change from that identified in the EIR.  

 

Determination:  

 There is nothing unusual or peculiar to the project or subject parcels that would change or affect 

the impacts to recreational facilities analyzed in the CGPU EIR. 

 Impacts of the proposed project on recreation were analyzed in the certified CGPU EIR. 

 There are no significant off-site or cumulative recreation impacts associated with the proposed 

project that were not addressed in the EIR. 

 There is no substantial new information indicating that recreation impacts of the project would be 

more severe than those described in the EIR. 

 

TRANSPORTATION 

 

Roadway Congestion and Level of Service Standards 

Regarding roadway congestion and level of service, buildout of the General Plan would result in 

significant and unavoidable impacts to regional roadways, including SR 86S and Grapefruit Boulevard. 

All other roadways within the City would have a less than significant impact with mitigation. In addition 

to CGPU policies designed to promote alternative modes of transportation and traffic calming design, 

mitigation measures also include updating the Development Impact Fee (DIF) program to establish a plan 

and funding mechanism for roadway and intersection improvements identified as having a significant 

impact (CGPU EIR, p. 4.9-28).  

 

Regional facilities are impacted by both by the proposed General Plan land uses and also by the growth in 

areas outside of Coachella. As such, the impact to these facilities cannot be fully mitigated and the impact 

remains significant and unavoidable.   

 

Traffic Patterns and Traffic Hazards 

Page 129

Item 11.



Coachella Valley Apartments CEQA Section 15183 Analysis 

December 4, 2019 

 

 

 
26 

 

The CGPU contains policies related to the design of transportation facilities that limit hazardous 

conditions, including emergency response/safety plans. Impacts at General Plan buildout would be less 

than significant, and no mitigation is required. The CGPU will have no direct or indirect impact upon any 

existing air traffic patterns or facilities.  

 

Alternative Modes of Transportation 

The CGPU identities and encourages alternative mode improvements that support travel by walking, 

bicycling, and transit. The EIR finds impacts to be less than significant. 

 

Proposed Project 

The proposed project is consistent with the following Mobility Element policies: 

 

3.2  Pedestrian improvement prioritizations. Prioritize pedestrian improvements in existing areas of 

the City with supportive land use patterns and those facilities that provide connectivity to other 

modes of travel such as bicycling and transit. 

 

3.4  Pedestrian connections for development. Require that all development or redevelopment projects 

provide pedestrian connections to the external pedestrian network. 

 

5.4  Transit accessible development. Encourage new large residential or commercial developments to 

locate on existing and planned transit routes. 

 

The project site is currently accessed by the existing roadway network, and no new roads are proposed or 

would be required to serve the proposed project. The project would demolish existing development and 

redesign all onsite circulation patterns. During construction, machinery and workers’ vehicles would be 

present onsite Construction staging plans would be subject to City approval to assure that construction 

does not adversely impact existing traffic operations, emergency access, or surrounding properties, 

particularly sensitive receptors (i.e, residential development).  

 

Once the project is operational, it will generate vehicle, pedestrian, and bicycle traffic associated 

residential uses. The site is located in proximity to the downtown area and well-served by the existing 

network of sidewalks, and transit service (the nearest SunLine Transit Agency bus stop is 0.10 miles east 

at Harrison Street and Bagdad Avenue) that offer opportunities for multi-modal transportation and can be 

expected to reduce the number of project-generated vehicle trips. The project proposes 191 on-site 

parking spaces with seven designated as handicapped spaces.  There will be 99 covered spaces with 

carports prepped for photovoltaic panels in the future. 

 

The proposed project is consistent with the “Urban Neighborhood” land use designation assigned by the 

CGPU and evaluated in the EIR. The EIR traffic analysis was based on the City-wide Traffic Study 

prepared by Urban Crossroads in 2007. Traffic data was collected throughout the General Plan planning 

area, including the immediate vicinity of the proposed project. As previously discussed, the EIR 

determined that development resulting from implementation of the CGPU would result in less than 

significant impacts to a local roadway congestion, local roadway performance standards, air traffic 

Page 130

Item 11.



Coachella Valley Apartments CEQA Section 15183 Analysis 

December 4, 2019 

 

 

 
27 

 

patterns, design hazards, emergency access, and public transit/bicycle/pedestrian facilities. However, 

impacts to regional roadways would remain significant and unavoidable due to local and regional growth. 

No feasible mitigation measures were identified, and the City adopted a statement of overriding 

considerations in its approval of the General Plan and EIR. 

 

The proposed project is consistent with the “Urban Neighborhood” land use designation assigned by the 

CGPU and evaluated in the EIR. The project increases the density of the site, but proposes a density that 

is less than the maximum density allowed on the property. As a result, the number of trips considered in 

the CGPU EIR was higher than that which will result from the proposed project. The proposed project 

would not result in any new impacts or significant findings or increase the severity of impacts identified 

in the CGPU EIR. The impact was adequately addressed in the EIR and would not change from that 

identified in the EIR.  

 

Determination:  

 There is nothing unusual or peculiar to the project or subject parcels that would change or affect 

the traffic impacts analyzed in the CGPU EIR. 

 Impacts of the proposed project on transportation were analyzed in the certified CGPU EIR. 

 There are no significant off-site or cumulative transportation impacts associated with the 

proposed project that were not addressed in the EIR. 

 There is no substantial new information indicating that transportation impacts of the project 

would be more severe than those described in the EIR. 

 

TRIBAL CULTURAL RESOURCES 

The CGPU Planning Area contains tribal lands belonging to the Augustine and Cabazon tribes. The 

project would result in demolition of the existing 50-unit residential development and redevelopment of a 

110-unit residential development.  Because the site has been previously disturbed by construction and 

development activities, there is a low chance for the discovery or disturbance of tribal cultural resources 

during development of the proposed project. Nonetheless, project development could result in damage to 

previously unknown resources or human remains. The Sustainability + Natural Environment Element of 

the CGPU sets forth policies addressing the protection and preservation of archaeological resources, 

which would include tribal cultural resources, as described under Cultural Resources, above.  

 

In addition, a mitigation measure was prescribed in the EIR requiring that a policy be added to  Chapter 7 

of the CGPU stating: “In areas where there is a high chance that human remains may be present, require 

proposed projects to conduct survey to establish occurrence of human remains, if any. If human remains 

are discovered on proposed project sites, the project must implement mitigation measures to prevent 

impacts to human remains in order to receive permit approval.” There is a low probability that human 

remains are present on the project site due to previous site disturbance and location within the City’s 

urban core. 

 

The proposed project is consistent with the “Urban Neighborhood” land use designation assigned by the 

CGPU and evaluated in the EIR.  The EIR determined that, with mitigation, development resulting from 

implementation of the CGPU would result in less than significant impacts to tribal cultural resources. 

Page 131

Item 11.



Coachella Valley Apartments CEQA Section 15183 Analysis 

December 4, 2019 

 

 

 
28 

 

Although not discussed in the CGPU EIR due to recent legislation, mandatory compliance with AB 52 

and SB 18 will also ensure impacts to tribal resources are mitigated. The EIR determined that, after 

mitigation, impacts of General Plan implementation on tribal cultural resources would be less than 

significant. 

 

The proposed project would not result in any new impacts or significant findings or increase the severity 

of impacts identified in the CGPU EIR. The impact was adequately addressed in the EIR and would not 

change from that identified in the EIR.  

 

 

 

Determination:  

 There is nothing unusual or peculiar to the project or subject parcels that would change or affect 

the impacts to Tribal Resources analyzed in the CGPU EIR. 

 Impacts of the proposed project on tribal cultural resources were analyzed in the certified CGPU 

EIR. 

 There are no significant off-site or cumulative impacts to tribal cultural resources associated with 

the proposed project that were not addressed in the EIR. 

 There is no substantial new information indicating that tribal cultural resources impacts of the 

project would be more severe than those described in the EIR. 

 

UTILITIES AND SERVICE SYSTEMS 

The proposed project would remove existing development from the subject property and eliminate its 

demand for water supplies, water and wastewater treatment facilities, and stormwater drainage facilities, 

and replace it with new development and new demand for utilities and facilities. The subject property is 

located in an urban area, and the project would not require the extension of utility infrastructure other than 

onsite connections. No new water supply entitlements would be required to serve the project, although 

water demand is expected to increase marginally as a result of the additional 60 apartments. The new 

construction, however, will be substantially more water-efficient than the existing decades-old irrigation 

system and apartment fixtures. Existing wastewater treatment facilities have enough capacity to serve the 

project, and the project would be required to manage its stormwater drainage in accordance with the 

requirements of the City and other agencies. The proposed project will generate solid waste to a 

somewhat greater degree than the existing project, insofar as additional units will be constructed. 

However, the project will be required to conform to existing regulations regarding waste diversion and 

recycling. 

 

The proposed project is consistent with the “Urban Neighborhood” land use designation assigned by the 

CGPU and evaluated in the EIR. The proposed project is at the low end of the potential units projected on 

the property in the General Pan, and will therefore have a lower impact on utilities and service systems 

than what was analyzed for this site in the EIR. The EIR determined that development resulting from 

implementation of the CGPU would result in less than significant impacts to utilities and service systems. 

No mitigation measures were required or provided. The proposed project would not result in any new 

Page 132

Item 11.



Coachella Valley Apartments CEQA Section 15183 Analysis 

December 4, 2019 

 

 

 
29 

 

impacts or significant findings or increase the severity of impacts identified in the CGPU EIR. The impact 

was adequately addressed in the EIR and would not change from that identified in the EIR.  

 

Determination:  

 There is nothing unusual or peculiar to the project or subject parcels that would change or affect 

the impacts on utilities and service systems analyzed in the CGPU EIR. 

 Impacts of the proposed project on utilities and service systems were analyzed in the certified 

CGPU EIR. 

 There are no significant off-site or cumulative utilities/service systems impacts associated with 

the proposed project that were not addressed in the EIR. 

 There is no substantial new information indicating that utilities/service systems impacts of the 

project would be more severe than those described in the EIR. 

 

WILDFIRE 

Most of the hillsides in the eastern and northeastern half of the City are located within a Local 

Responsibility Area (LRAs) with a moderate fire hazard. The subject parcels are in the City’s urban core 

and surrounded by development, and there are no undeveloped lands in the project vicinity where 

wildfires are likely to occur. The project would result in new residential structures and an increased 

density, which could increase the potential for urban fires. However, the project would be subject to 

standard plan checks and inspections provided by the Riverside County Fire Department, and adherence 

to CGPU policies, which would to assure that potential fire hazards are reduced to less than significant 

levels, including: 

 

4.2  Construction materials. Require the use of fire-resistant building construction materials to reduce 

the hazard of structure fires, within the developed areas of the City and at the urban-wildland 

interface. (Safety) 

 

7.8  Development impacts. Require new development in the City to mitigate project-related impacts to 

police and fire services. (Infrastructure and Public Services) 

 

The proposed project is consistent with the “Urban Neighborhood” land use designation assigned by the 

CGPU and evaluated in the EIR. The EIR determined that development resulting from implementation of 

the CGPU would result in less than significant wildfire impacts. No mitigation measures were required or 

provided. The proposed project would not result in any new impacts or significant findings or increase the 

severity of impacts identified in the CGPU EIR. The impact was adequately addressed in the EIR and 

would not change from that identified in the EIR.  

 

Determination:  

 There is nothing unusual or peculiar to the project or subject parcels that would change or affect 

the impacts of wildfire analyzed in the CGPU EIR. 

 Impacts of the proposed project on wildfire were analyzed in the certified CGPU EIR. 

 There are no significant off-site or cumulative wildfire impacts associated with the proposed 

project that were not addressed in the EIR. 

Page 133

Item 11.



Coachella Valley Apartments CEQA Section 15183 Analysis 

December 4, 2019 

 

 

 
30 

 

 There is no substantial new information indicating that wildfire impacts of the project would be 

more severe than those described in the EIR. 

 

 

4. Findings 

 

As demonstrated in the analysis herein, the proposed project is consistent with the land use designations 

and development densities assigned to the subject parcels in the General Plan. It is consistent with the 

findings of the Coachella General Plan Update EIR that was certified in 2015. Potential project-related 

impacts, including cumulative and off-site impacts, were fully addressed in the EIR, and applicable 

mitigation measures were provided to reduce project-specific impacts. There are no significant off-site or 

cumulative impacts that are peculiar to the project or its site that have not already been fully addressed in 

a previous environmental analysis or that cannot be substantially mitigated through the application of 

uniformly applied standards and policies. Applicable mitigation measures have been cited, and they will 

be implemented through project design, compliance with regulations and ordinances, or conditions of 

approval. Implementation of the project would not result in any new or altered impacts beyond those 

addressed in the EIR. There is no substantial new information that would result in more severe impacts 

than those anticipated by the EIR. Therefore, in accordance with CEQA Guidelines §15183, the project 

qualifies for an exemption from additional environmental review, and no further analysis of the project is 

required. Findings are summarized in the following table. 

 

 

 

Page 134

Item 11.



Coachella Valley Apartments CEQA Section 15183 Analysis 

December 4, 2019 

 

 

 
31 

 

Compliance with CEQA Section 15183 

Environmental 

Resource Topic (b
)(

1
) 

Im
p

a
ct

s 
p

o
te

n
ti

a
ll

y
 p

ec
u

li
a

r 
to

 t
h

e 
p

ro
je

c
t 

o
r 

p
a

rc
el

?
 

(b
)(

2
) 

Im
p

a
ct

s 
a

n
a

ly
ze

d
 a

s 
si

g
n

if
ic

a
n

t 
ef

fe
c
ts

 i
n

 a
 

p
ri

o
r 

E
IR

 o
n

 t
h

e 
zo

n
in

g
 a

ct
io

n
, 

g
en

er
a

l 
p

la
n

 o
r 

co
m

m
u

n
it

y
 p

la
n

, 
w

it
h

 w
h

ic
h

 t
h

e 
p

ro
je

c
t 

is
 

co
n

si
st

en
t?

 

(b
)(

3
) 

P
o

te
n

ti
a

ll
y

 s
ig

n
if

ic
a

n
t 

o
ff

-s
it

e 
o

r
 c

u
m

u
la

ti
v

e 

im
p

a
ct

s 
n

o
t 

d
is

cu
ss

e
d

 i
n

 t
h

e 
p

ri
o

r 
E

IR
?

 

(b
)(

4
) 

S
u

b
st

a
n

ti
a

l 
n

ew
 i

n
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
 s

h
o

w
in

g
 a

 m
o

re
 

se
v

er
e
 a

d
v

er
se

 i
m

p
a

ct
 t

h
a

n
 i

n
 t

h
e 

p
ri

o
r 

E
IR

?
 

(c
) 

Im
p

a
ct

 i
s 

n
o

t 
p

ec
u

li
a

r 
to

 p
a

rc
el

 o
r 

p
ro

je
c
t,

 h
a

s 

b
ee

n
 a

d
d

re
ss

ed
 a

s 
a

 s
ig

n
if

ic
a

n
t 

ef
fe

c
t 

in
 t

h
e 

p
ri

o
r 

E
IR

, 
o

r 
ca

n
 b

e 
su

b
st

a
n

ti
a

ll
y

 m
it

ig
a

te
d

 b
y

 t
h

e 

im
p

o
si

ti
o

n
 o

f 
u

n
if

o
rm

ly
 a

p
p

li
ed

 d
ev

el
o

p
m

en
t 

p
o

li
ci

es
 o

r 
st

a
n

d
a

rd
s?

 

Aesthetics No Yes No No Yes 

Agriculture & Forestry Resources No Yes No No Yes 

Air Quality No Yes No No Yes 

Biological Resources No Yes No No Yes 

Cultural Resources No Yes No No Yes 

Energy No Yes No No Yes 

Geology & Soils No Yes No No Yes 

Greenhouse Gas Emissions No Yes No No Yes 

Hazards & Hazardous Materials No Yes No No Yes 

Hydrology & Water Quality No Yes No No Yes 

Land Use & Planning No Yes No No Yes 

Mineral Resources No Yes No No Yes 

Noise No Yes No No Yes 

Population & Housing No Yes No No Yes 

Public Services No Yes No No Yes 

Recreation No Yes No No Yes 

Transportation No Yes No No Yes 

Tribal Cultural Resources No Yes No No Yes 

Utilities & Service Systems No Yes No No Yes 

Wildfire No Yes No No Yes 

 

 

 

  

Page 135

Item 11.



Coachella Valley Apartments CEQA Section 15183 Analysis 

December 4, 2019 

 

 

 
32 

 

5. References 

 

Coachella General Plan Update 2035, prepared by Raimi + Associates, adopted April 22, 2015. 

 

Coachella General Plan Update 2035 Draft Environmental Impact Report (SCH#2009021007), prepared 

by Raimi + Associates, July 2014. 

 

City of Coachella Municipal Code. 

 

City of Coachella Zoning Map. 

 

Phase I Environmental Site Assessment, prepared by Terra Nova Planning & Research, Inc., January 

2019. 

 

 

Appendix 

 

Appendix A: Phase I Environmental Site Assessment 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 136

Item 11.



Page 137

Item 11.



Page 138

Item 11.



Page 139

Item 11.



Page 140

Item 11.



Page 141

Item 11.



 

 
Shawn C. Newman - Fire Chief 

Office of the County Fire Marshal (East) 
77-933 Las Montañas Rd., Ste. #201, Palm Desert, CA  92211-4131  

 Phone (760) 863-8886  Fax (760) 863-7072 

www.rvcfire.org 
 

Proudly serving  the 

unincorporated areas 

of riverside county 

and the cities of: 

 

 

Banning 

 

Beaumont 

 

Coachella 

 

Desert Hot Springs 

 

Eastvale 

 

Indian Wells 

 

Indio 

 

Jurupa Valley 

 

Lake Elsinore 

 

La Quinta 

 

Menifee 

 

Moreno Valley 

 

Norco 

 

Palm Desert 

 

Perris 

 

Rancho Mirage 

 

Rubidoux CSD 

 

San Jacinto 

 

Temecula 

 

Wildomar 

 

 

 

BOARD OF  

SUPERVISORS: 

 

Kevin Jeffries 

 District 1 

 

Karen speigel

 District 2 

 

CHARLES WASHINGTON 

 District 3 

 

V. MANUEL PEREZ 

 District 4 

 

Jeff hewitt

 District 5 

 

 

   

 

 
 

Planning Case Conditions 
 

Date: 1/28/20 
City Case Number: Architectural Review No. 19-10 
Project Name: Coachella Valley Apartments 
Planner: Luis Lopez, Development Services Director 
Reviewed By: Chris Cox, Assistant Fire Marshal  
Fire Department Permit Number: FPARC2000001 
East Office of the Fire Marshal Responsibility   
 
It is the responsibility of the recipient of these Fire Department conditions to 
forward them to all interested parties.  The permit number (as it is noted 
above) is required on all correspondence. 
 
Additional information is available at our website:  www.rvcfire.org  
 
Questions should be directed to the Riverside County Fire Department, Office 
of the Fire Marshal at 77933 Las Montañas Suite 201, Palm Desert, CA 
92211 (760) 863-8886. 
 
Comments and Corrections: 
 

1. Fire hydrants should be located no less than 40 feet to the buildings 
they protect.  Provide a plan showing the proposed locations of the fire 
hydrants. (NFPA 24: 7.2.3)  

 
With respect to the conditions of approval for the referenced project, the Fire 
Department requires the following fire protection measures be provided in 
accordance with Riverside County Ordinances and/or recognized fire 
protection standards: 
 
1. Fire Hydrants and Fire Flow: Prior to the issuance of building permits, 

plans for the water system shall be submitted to the fire department for 
review and approval.  The water system shall be capable of delivering the 
required fire flow.  Fire hydrant(s) location and spacing shall comply with 
the fire code.  Reference 2016 California Fire Code ((CFC) 507.5.1, 
Appendices B and C).  
 

2. Fire Department Access: Prior to building permit issuance, provide a site 
plan showing the fire lanes.  Access roads shall be provided to within 150 
feet to all portions of the exterior building walls and shall have an 
unobstructed width of not less than 24 feet. The construction of the access 
roads shall be all weather and capable of sustaining 60,000 lbs. over two 
axels for commercial developments. Ref. CFC 503.1.1 and 503.2.1 

Page 142

Item 11.

http://www.rvcfire.org/


Riverside County Fire Department – Office of the County Fire Marshal 
Planning Case Conditions - Page 2 

 
 

3. Requests for installation of traffic calming designs/devices on fire apparatus access roads shall 
be submitted and approved by the Office of the Fire Marshal. Ref. CFC 503.4.1 

 
4. Grading Permit Fire Department Review: Submittal to the Office of the Fire Marshal for Precise 

Grading Permit will be required. 
 

5. Construction Permits Fire Department Review: Submittal of construction plans to the Office of 
the Fire Marshal for development, construction, installation and operational use permitting will 
be required. Final fire and life safety conditions will be addressed when the Office of the Fire 
Marshal reviews these plans.  These conditions will be based on occupancy, use, California 
Building Code (CBC), California Fire Code, and related codes, which are in effect at the time of 
building plan submittal. 
 

6. Phased Construction Access: If construction is phased, each phase shall provide approved 
access for fire protection prior to any construction. Ref. CFC 503.1 

 
7. Fire Sprinkler System: All new commercial structures 3,600 square feet or larger and all 

residential dwellings shall be protected with a fire sprinkler system. Ref CFC 903.2 as 
amended by the City of Coachella.  

 

8. Fire Alarm and Detection System: A water flow monitoring system and/or fire alarm system 
may be required and determined at time of building plan review. Ref. CFC 903.4, CFC 907.2 
and NFPA 72 

 
9. Knox Box and Gate Access: Buildings shall be provided with a Knox Box. The Knox Box shall 

be installed in an accessible location approved by the Office of the Fire Marshal. All 
electronically operated gates shall be provided with Knox key switches and automatic sensors 
for access. Ref. CFC 506.1 

 
10. Addressing: All residential dwellings shall display street numbers in a prominent location on 

the street side of the residence. All commercial buildings shall display street numbers in a 
prominent location on the address side and additional locations as required. Ref. CFC 505.1 
and County of Riverside Office of the Fire Marshal Standard #07-01 

 
 

These conditions are preliminary and further review will occur upon receipt of construction plans. 
Additional requirements may be required based upon the adopted codes at the time of submittal.  

 
Should you have any questions, or if some items are unclear, please phone our office at 
760-863-8886 and speak with Assistant Fire Marshal Chris Cox to assist you with these 
conditions. 
 

 

Page 143

Item 11.


	Top
	1.	Meeting Minutes of February 26, 2020 (Council)
	CouncilMinutes-02-26-2020

	2.	Voucher Listings — Manual Checks/Utility Billing Refunds/FY 2019-20 Expenditures as of March 11, 2020, $629,862.96.
	200311 Warrant Register

	3.	Ordinance No. 1146 - 2nd Reading
	CC Staff Rpt 03-11-20 Ord 1146
	Ordinance No. 1146 - 2nd Reading

	4.	Resolution No 2020-06, Initiating Preparation of Engineer's Report
	1 Staff Report
	1 Reso 2020-06 Initiation of the Levy FY 2021

	5.	CVAG Amendment 3 to JPA
	CVAG Letter from Torres Martinez
	Staff Report - CVAG Amendment 3 JPA
	CVAG Amendment 3 to JPA

	6.	Investment Report – January 2020
	Treasurer&#39;s Report - 01 2020 Staff Report (0304-20)
	01- 2020 Treasurer&#39;s Report

	7.	Authorize 1) surplus of the City’s 1990 Dump Truck International unit and 2) purchase of a 2021 Dump Truck International unit to replace the 1990 unit, in the amount of $99,675.78.
	Agenda - Award 2020 Ford F-650 Dump Truck 3 11 20
	Exhibit A - International Dump Truck 3 11 20

	8.	Authorize the Purchase of Sedaru Asset & Operational Management Software Licensing for Calendar Year 2020 at a cost of $31,080.00
	Staff Report Sedaru Software License 2020 3.11.2020
	S 301-001-06 10282019

	9.	Shady Lane Park Art Mural Installation Project
	Staff Report - Art Mural Installation Shady Lane Park
	Mural Installation - Shady Lane Park

	10.	Authorize the Purchase of Thirty (30) James Jones J-4060 Fire Hydrants at a Cost of $68,847.90.
	Staff Report Hydrants
	Western Water Works Quote
	Core and Main Quote

	11.	Resolution No. 2020-17 approving Tentative Parcel Map No. 37833
	CC Staff Rpt 03-11-20 TPM 37833
	Reso No 2020-17
	CHOC CV Apts CEQA 15183 Analysis - Final PC Version
	29 Palms Band of Mission Indians
	SunLine Memo 1-17-2020
	CVWD
	Riv. Co. Fire Department

	Bottom

